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The front cover features an abstract 
portrayal of Wing Tai’s latest development  
– The LakeGarden Residences. Nestled  
in the heart of Jurong Lake District,  
The LakeGarden Residences offers 
breathtaking, unobstructed views of  
the tranquil lake and lush greenery.  
The watercolour technique, with its vibrant 
strokes of greens and blues, beautifully 
captures The LakeGarden Residences’  
harmony with nature, creating a  
haven for residents to retreat,  
rejuvenate and recharge. 
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Chairman’s 
Message

As we write a new 
chapter of the Wing Tai 
story, our conviction to 
progress and achieve 
greater success
remains resolute.

Overview
 
In this past year, businesses continued 
to grapple with uncertainties arising 
from geopolitical conflicts, high interest 
rates and weak growth. According to 
the Ministry of Trade and Industry, 
the Singapore economy grew by 1.1% 
in 2023, moderating from the 3.8% 
expansion in 2022. In the second quarter 
of 2024, Singapore’s economy grew by 
2.9% on a year-on-year basis, extending 
the 3.0% growth in the previous quarter; 
with full-year growth forecast narrowed 
to 2% to 3% for 2024. 
 
The Property Price Index (“PPI”) increased 
slightly by 0.8% to 196.0 in the third 
quarter of 2023, followed by an increase 
of 2.8% to 201.5 in the fourth quarter of 
2023. In the first quarter of 2024, PPI rose 
to 204.3, a moderate growth of 1.4%, 
and increased by 0.9% in the second 
quarter to 206.1. According to statistics 
by the Urban Redevelopment Authority 
(“URA”), sales of new residential units 
in 2023 declined by 9.6% to 6,421 units, 
compared to 7,099 units sold in 2022.  
In the first half of 2024, developers sold 
1,889 new homes, 44.2% lower than  
the first half of 2023. 

Group Performance 
 
For the financial year ended  
30 June 2024, the Group recorded  
a total revenue of S$169.2 million as 
compared to S$476.3 million in the 
previous year. This decrease is mainly 
due to the lower contribution from 
development properties. The current  
year revenue from development 
properties was largely attributable to  
the progressive sales recognised from  

The LakeGarden Residences in  
Singapore and Jesselton Hills in Malaysia  
as well as the remaining units sold in  
The M at Middle Road in Singapore. 

The Group recorded an operating profit 
of S$22.5 million in the current year 
as compared to S$26.9 million in the 
previous year. This decrease is primarily 
due to the lower profit recognised from 
The M at Middle Road and the absence of 
contribution from Le Nouvel Ardmore in 
Singapore that was completely sold in the 
previous year. 

The Group’s share of results of associated 
and joint venture companies in the 
current year was a loss of S$58.6 million 
as compared to S$10.4 million in the 
previous year. In the current year, the 
Group’s share of loss from Wing Tai 
Properties Limited was S$108.0 million 
which was largely attributable to the 
provision for impairment losses on its 
development properties and the fair 
value losses on its investment properties 
in Hong Kong. 

The Group consequently recorded  
a net loss of S$78.7 million in the current 
year as compared to net profit of  
S$13.3 million in the previous year. 

The Group’s net asset value per share as 
at 30 June 2024 was S$3.90 as compared 
to S$4.13 as at 30 June 2023. The Group’s 
net gearing ratio was 0.06 times as at  
30 June 2024. 
 

Dividend 
 
The Board recommended a first and  
final dividend of 3 cents per share for  
the current year. 
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Progressing with  
Conviction

Last year marked a significant milestone 
for Wing Tai as we celebrated our 
60th anniversary of founding. In our 
transition from garment manufacturing 
to real estate development and fashion 
retailing, we have remained committed 
to delivering high-quality property, 
lifestyle and service offerings. 

In the year under review, the Group 
made steady progress in our property 
business. In June 2024, we won the bid 
for a 99-year leasehold prime residential 
site in River Valley under the Government 
Land Sales programme. Well located 
in central Singapore, our vision is to 
transform the site into a modern and 
luxurious residential development 
comprising over 400 units. Over in 
western Singapore, the Group’s first 
sustainable residential development – 
The LakeGarden Residences – received 
the prestigious Building and Construction 
Authority (“BCA”) Green Mark Platinum 
Super Low Energy certification. 
Construction which commenced after 
the groundbreaking ceremony in March 
2024, is proceeding as planned. As at end 
June 2024, more than 45% of the 306 
units have been sold. Meanwhile, in the 
heart of Singapore’s vibrant civic district, 
The M at Middle Road has been fully 
sold, with all residential and commercial 
units handed over to the owners. 

Away from home, the Group acquired 
a 2-storey commercial property 11 – 27 
Tavistock Place, which is adjacent to our 
existing property at 380 Flinders Street 
in Melbourne, Australia. Preliminary 
planning for the Group’s freehold 
8-storey building in St Kilda, Melbourne 
is underway. Meanwhile, Jesselton Hills 
in Penang, Malaysia continued to garner 

interest among homebuyers, and the 
Group’s hotel in Tokyo, Japan also saw 
stable occupancy under its new operator. 

On the retail front, our businesses in 
Singapore and Malaysia focused on 
customer engagement and improving 
shopping experiences through new 
store concepts and innovative marketing 
initiatives. We rebranded Malaysia’s 
customer loyalty programme to wt+ 
in alignment with Singapore, allowing 
shoppers to enjoy sales promotions 
across the Group’s retail brands in both 
countries. UNIQLO, our joint venture with 
Fast Retailing continued to be a staple 
brand in both markets. 

Giving Back

To create positive and meaningful impact 
in the community, the Group continued 
to support the needs of disadvantaged 
children and underprivileged elderly 
through Wing Tai Foundation. Our 
employees also play an important role  
in our community outreach efforts. 

This year, we reaffirmed our support for 
Kwong Wai Shiu Hospital and the Boys’ 
Brigade Share-a-Gift project through 
food donation drives. Close to 3,000 food 
and household items were collectively 
donated by our staff, Winsland House 
tenants and guests of our Lanson Place 
service apartments. During the festive 
season, our staff volunteers went door-
to-door to distribute packed hampers 
under the Boys’ Bridge Share-a-Gift 
project. This Lunar New Year, staff 
volunteers in Singapore and Malaysia  
also brought festive cheer to the  
seniors of NTUC Health Co-operative 
Limited Senior Day Care (Serangoon 
Central) and elderly residents of  
Seri Setia Home for the Aged in  
Petaling Jaya, Malaysia respectively. 

Our staff in Malaysia also made efforts 
to raise funds for underprivileged 
children and homeless elderly. In support 
of environmental conservation, they 
participated in a tree-planting activity  
at the Raja Musa Forest Reserve in 
Selangor, Malaysia.

Appreciation

As I reflect on our journey, I am cognisant 
that growth and success would not be 
possible without the hard work and 
dedication of our management team 
and employees. My gratitude to our 
shareholders, customers, bankers, and 
business associates for their steadfast 
support and confidence over the years.

I would also like to express my 
appreciation to our Board of Directors 
for their strategic insights and guidance 
as we navigate the increasingly complex 
market environment. 

Looking Ahead

As we write a new chapter of the  
Wing Tai story, our conviction to  
progress and achieve greater success 
remains resolute. Despite headwinds in 
the global economy, we are cautiously 
optimistic and eagerly anticipate 
what the future holds. With our firm 
foundation and resilient balance sheet,  
I am confident that the Group is  
well-positioned to overcome challenges 
and seize opportunities as they arise,  
as we strive to create sustainable value 
for our stakeholders. 

Cheng Wai Keung
Chairman
Wing Tai Holdings Limited
19 September 2024
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Board of 
Directors

Edmund Cheng  
Wai Wing, 72
Deputy Chairman and 
Deputy Managing Director

Date of first appointment  
as director
11 May 1981

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2022

Board committee(s) served on
Nil

Academic and professional 
qualification(s) 
•	Bachelor of Engineering  

(Civil Engineering), 
Northwestern University,  
USA

•	Master of Architecture, 
Carnegie Mellon University, 
USA	

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments 
Other listed companies
Nil

Other principal commitments
•	Mapletree Investments  

Pte Ltd (Chairman)
•	Civil Aviation Authority of 

Singapore (Chairman)
•	Singapore Art Museum 

(Chairman)
•	Yellow Ribbon Fund Main 

Committee (Chairman)
•	Singapore Land Authority 

– State Properties Advisory 
Committee (Chairman)

	
Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years 
Nil

Cheng  
Wai Keung, 74
Chairman and  
Managing Director

Date of first appointment  
as director
17 April 1973

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2021

Board committee(s) served on
•	Nominating Committee 

(Member)

Academic and professional 
qualification(s)
•	Bachelor of Science,  

Indiana University, USA
•	Master of Business 

Administration, University  
of Chicago, USA

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies
Nil
 
Other principal commitments
•	Temasek Holdings (Private) 

Limited (Deputy Chairman)
•	Singapore Health Services  

Pte Ltd (Chairman)
•	Singapore-Suzhou Township 

Development Pte Ltd  
(Vice Chairman)

•	MOH Holdings Pte Ltd 
(Director)

•	Kidney Dialysis Foundation 
Limited (Director)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years 
Nil
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Eric Ang  
Teik Lim, 71 
Lead Independent  
Director 

Date of first appointment  
as director
1 July 2020 

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
23 October 2023

Board committee(s) served on
•	Audit & Risk Committee 

(Chairman) 
•	Nominating Committee 

(Member)

Academic and professional 
qualification(s) 
•	Bachelor of Business 

Administration (Honours), 
National University of 
Singapore

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies 
Nil
 
Other principal commitments
•	Surbana Jurong Private Limited 

(Director)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
•	Sembcorp Marine Ltd
•	NetLink NBN Management  

Pte Ltd (Trustee of NetLink 
NBN Trust) 

•	Raffles Medical Group Ltd

Cheng  
Man Tak, 64
Non-Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Date of first appointment  
as director
11 May 1981

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
23 October 2023

Board committee(s) served on
Nil

Academic and professional 
qualification(s) 
•	Bachelor of Science, University  

of Southern California, USA 
•	Master of Business 

Administration, Pepperdine 
University, USA

•	Master of Law, Central Party 
School Correspondence Course 
Institute (Sichuan Branch), China

Current directorships in other  
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies
Nil

Other principal commitments
•	Clothing Industry Training 

Authority (Chairman)
•	Federation of Hong Kong 

Industries – Group 24 (Woven 
Garments and other Woven 
Made-Up Goods) (Chairman)

•	Hong Kong General Chamber  
of Textiles (Honorary Chairman)

•	Hong Kong Youth Orchestra 
(Honorary Chairman)

•	Friends of The Community Chest 
Wan Chai District (Vice Chairman)

•	Hong Kong Asia Youth 
Association (Honorary President)

•	Federation of Hong Kong Garment 
Manufacturers (President)

•	National Committee of Yunnan 
Province (Member of National 
Committee of the Chinese 
People’s Political Consultative 
Conference)

•	Hong Kong 2021 Election 
Committee – Textiles and 
Garment Subsector (Member)

•	Vocational Training Council – 
Fashion and Textile Training Board 
(Member)

•	The Hong Kong Polytechnic 
University – Advisory Committee 
of School of Fashion and Textiles 
(Member)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years 
•	Kato (Hong Kong) Holdings 

Limited (Listed on the Stock 
Exchange of Hong Kong)

Sim Beng Mei Mildred  
(Mildred Tan), 66
Independent  
Non-Executive Director 

Date of first appointment  
as director
2 January 2019 

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2022 

Board committee(s) served on
•	Remuneration Committee 

(Chairman)
•	Audit & Risk Committee 

(Member)

Academic and professional 
qualification(s) 
•	Bachelor of Arts (Honours), 

Middlesex University, UK 
•	Master in Education,  

University of Sheffield, UK 
•	HR Executive Program,  

Cornell University, USA 
•	Harvard Executive Leadership 

Program, Harvard Business 
School, Boston, USA 

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies 
Nil 

Other principal commitments 
•	Singapore Totalisator Board 

(Chairman)
•	Singapore University of  

Social Sciences Board of  
Trustee (Chairman)

•	Council for Board Diversity 
(Co-Chair)

•	Global Future Council on the 
Future of Philanthropy for 
Climate and Nature, World 
Economic Forum (Co-Chair)

•	Council of Presidential  
Advisers (Member)

•	AIA Singapore Pte Ltd 
(Director)

•	National University Health 
System (Director) 

•	Philanthropy Asia Alliance 
(Director)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
Nil

Kwa  
Kim Li, 68
Independent  
Non-Executive Director 

Date of first appointment  
as director
1 May 2022 

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2022 

Board committee(s) served on
•	Nominating Committee 

(Chairman)
•	Remuneration Committee 

(Member) 

Academic and professional 
qualification(s)
•	Bachelor of Laws (Honours), 

National University of 
Singapore 

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies
Nil

Other principal commitments 
•	Lee & Lee, Advocates and 

Solicitors (Managing Partner)
•	Changi Airport Group 

(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.  
(Director)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
•	Mapletree Commercial Trust 

Management Ltd. 
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Tan Sri Zulkurnain 
Bin Awang, 74
Independent  
Non-Executive Director

Date of first appointment  
as director
2 January 2018

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2022

Board committee(s) served on
Nil

Academic and professional 
qualification(s)
•	Bachelor of Economics 

(Honours), University of 
Malaya, Malaysia

•	Master of Arts in International 
Affairs Management, Ohio 
University, USA

•	Master of Arts in Political 
Science, Ohio University, USA

•	Certificate in Public 
Administration, Ohio 
University, USA

•	PhD, University of Leeds, 
England

•	Harvard Advanced 
Management Program, 
Harvard Business School, 
Boston, USA

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies
Nil

Other principal commitments
•	Wing Tai Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 

(Chairman)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
Nil

Tan  
Hwee Bin, 61
Executive Director 

Date of first appointment  
as director
5 December 2008

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
26 October 2021

Board committee(s) served on
Nil

Academic and professional 
qualification(s)
•	Bachelor of Accountancy, 

National University of 
Singapore

•	Chartered Accountant  
of Singapore

•	Harvard Advanced 
Management Program, 
Harvard Business School, 
Boston, USA

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies 
Nil

Other principal commitments
•	Singapore Labour  

Foundation (Director)
•	NTUC Enterprise Co-operative 

Limited (Director)
•	NTUC FairPrice Co-operative 

Limited (Director)
•	Singapore National  

Employers Federation  
(Vice President)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
Nil

Guy Daniel  
Harvey-Samuel, 67
Independent  
Non-Executive Director

Date of first appointment  
as director
2 January 2018

Date of last re-appointment  
as director
23 October 2023

Board committee(s) served on
•	Audit & Risk Committee 

(Member) 
•	Remuneration Committee 

(Member)

Academic and professional 
qualification(s) 
•	An associate of the Chartered 

Institute of Bankers 
(Accountancy Law Relating  
to Banking Services Monetary 
Economics Nature  
of Management) 

•	Qualified Marshall Goldsmith 
Leadership Coach

•	Executive Diploma in 
Directorship, Singapore 
Management University

•	Certificate in Sustainable 
Business Strategy, Harvard 
Business School Online

Current directorships in other 
listed companies and other 
principal commitments
Other listed companies
•	Mapletree Industrial Trust 

Management Ltd

Other principal commitments
•	M1 Limited (Director)
•	Capella Hotel Group  

Pte Ltd (Director)
•	Clifford Capital Holdings  

Pte. Ltd. (Director)
•	Clifford Capital Pte. Ltd. 

(Director)
•	Garden City Fund 

Management Committee 
(Member)

Past directorships in other  
listed companies held over 
preceding three years
Nil
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Key
Management

Wing Tai  
Holdings Limited

Wing Tai Property 
Management Pte Ltd

Ng Kim Huat 
Group Chief Financial Officer

•	Oversees financial reporting 
and controls, treasury, tax 
and information technology 
functions of the Group  
since 2003

•	More than 10 years’ 
auditing experience with an 
international public accounting 
firm in Singapore

•	Bachelor of Accountancy 
(Honours), National University 
of Singapore

•	Chartered Accountant of 
Singapore

Helen Chow 
Director

•	Held various positions in 
Company since 1975

•	Responsible for marketing 
and sales functions in 
property division; develops 
and implements strategies to 
achieve optimal marketing 
mix for property products, 
manages sales operations 
across geographies to achieve 
revenue goals

•	Bachelor of Arts, Mills College, 
Oakland, California, USA

Stacey Ow Yeong 
Head, Marketing

•	Responsible for sales and 
marketing of Company’s 
portfolio of residential 
properties in Singapore, 
Malaysia and China since 2014

•	Over 30 years of sales and 
marketing experience, 
including more than  
15 years in residential and 
integrated properties industry 
in Asia and Middle East  

•	Bachelor of Arts, National 
University of Singapore

Joseph Quek 
Head, Property Management  
& Customer Service

•	Responsible for property 
management & customer service, 
facilities management, quality 
control & quality assurance and 
costs & contracts of Company’s 
portfolio of residential and 
commercial properties in 
Singapore, Malaysia and China 
since 2014

•	Over 30 years of experience in 
property & customer service, 
facility management and  
quality assurance in Asia and 
Middle East

•	Master of Science in Real Estate, 
National University of Singapore

Jim Lau 
Head, Project Management

•	Responsible for project 
management of Company’s 
portfolio of residential and 
commercial properties in 
Singapore, Malaysia, China and 
Australia since 2018

•	28 years of project management 
experience in Singapore, 
Malaysia, China, Cambodia, 
Australia and USA

•	Member of REDAS Management 
Committee

•	Bachelor of Design Studies &  
Bachelor of Architecture 
(Honours), University of 
Queensland, Australia 

•	Registered APEC Architect, 
Registered RAIA member and 
Registered Architect, Australia

Karine Lim 
Group Chief Human  
Resource Officer

•	Oversees human capital 
strategy and management of 
the Group since 2004

•	More than 30 years’ human 
resource management 
experience in retail, property 
and public transport industries

•	Bachelor of Arts (Honours), 
National University of 
Singapore 

•	Diploma in Human Resource 
Management, Singapore 
Human Resource Institute 
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Corporate 
Data

Board of Directors

Executive
Cheng Wai Keung
Chairman and  
Managing Director

Edmund Cheng Wai Wing
Deputy Chairman and 
Deputy Managing Director

Tan Hwee Bin
Executive Director

Non-Executive
Cheng Man Tak
Non-Independent Director

Eric Ang Teik Lim
Lead Independent Director

Sim Beng Mei Mildred  
(Mildred Tan)
Independent Director

Kwa Kim Li
Independent Director 

Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel
Independent Director

Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang
Independent Director

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Eric Ang Teik Lim
Chairman 

Sim Beng Mei Mildred 
(Mildred Tan)

Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel

Nominating 
Committee

Kwa Kim Li 
Chairman 

Eric Ang Teik Lim

Cheng Wai Keung

Remuneration 
Committee

Sim Beng Mei Mildred 
(Mildred Tan)
Chairman

Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel

Kwa Kim Li

Company Secretary

Gabrielle Tan

Registered Office

3 Killiney Road
#10-01 Winsland House I
Singapore 239519
Tel: 6280 9111
www.wingtaiasia.com

Share Registrar

Tricor Barbinder Share 
Registration Services 
(A division of Tricor  
Singapore Pte. Ltd.)
9 Raffles Place #26-01
Republic Plaza Tower I
Singapore 048619

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants
7 Straits View
Marina One East Tower
Level 12
Singapore 018936
Audit Partner: Choo Eng Beng	
(Year of Appointment: 2021)

Principal Bankers

DBS Bank Ltd.
12 Marina Boulevard
DBS Asia Central @  
Marina Bay Financial Centre 
Tower 3
Singapore 018982

The Hongkong and Shanghai 
Banking Corporation Limited
10 Marina Boulevard #48-01 
Marina Bay Financial Centre
Singapore 018983

Malayan Banking Berhad
2 Battery Road
Maybank Tower
Singapore 049907

Oversea-Chinese Banking 
Corporation Limited
65 Chulia Street
OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation
88 Market Street
#33-01 CapitaSpring
Singapore 048948

United Overseas Bank Limited
80 Raffles Place
UOB Plaza
Singapore 048624
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Property

Singapore 

In June 2024, Wing Tai won a tender 
bid for a 99-year leasehold land 
parcel at River Valley Green under the 
Government Land Sales programme. 
Located in the prime River Valley area 
in central Singapore, the Group plans 
to develop the site into a modern and 
luxurious residential development 
with over 400 units. 

The LakeGarden Residences is a 306-unit 
leasehold development located in the 
Jurong Lake District and Wing Tai’s first 
sustainable residential development. 
On 14 March 2024, Wing Tai marked 
the start of construction with a 
groundbreaking ceremony. As at  
30 June 2024, more than 45% of the 
units have been sold. Marketing and 
sales activities are ongoing.

Nestled in the heart of Jurong Lake 
District, The LakeGarden Residences 
seamlessly blends the tranquility of 
nature with contemporary elegance 
to create a “Home in a Garden”.

Wing Tai plans to 
develop the River Valley 
Green land parcel into 
a modern and luxurious 
development with  
over 400 units. 

09.ANNUAL REPORT 2024     PROGRESSING WITH CONVICTION

OPERATIONS REVIEW



Singapore 

The M at Middle Road, a 522-unit 
leasehold development, was fully 
sold as at 30 June 2024. The project 
has also obtained its Temporary 
Occupation Permit (“TOP”) in  
August 2023, and all residential and 
commercial units have been fully 
handed over to the owners. 

The Group’s investment properties 
Winsland House I and II achieved 
occupancy rate of close to 90% as  
at 30 June 2024. 

The occupancy rate of Lanson Place 
Winsland Serviced Suites was close  
to 75% as at 30 June 2024.

The M at Middle Road 
was fully sold, with 
all residential and 
commercial units  
fully handed over  
to the owners.

The M at Middle Road provides 
a restful oasis amidst its vibrant 
surroundings at the heart of 
Singapore’s arts, business and 
entertainment districts.
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Malaysia 

The Group’s property business 
activities in Malaysia are conducted 
through its subsidiary company,  
Wing Tai Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

In Kuala Lumpur, the twin-tower  
Le Nouvel KLCC designed by  
Jean Nouvel, is a 195-unit freehold 
development at Jalan Ampang, facing 
the Petronas Twin Towers and Suria 
KLCC. As at 30 June 2024, more than 
75% of the units have been leased. 

In Penang, Phase 5A of Jesselton Hills, 
comprising 70 units of double-storey 
terrace houses was over 95% sold 
as at 30 June 2024, while Phase 5B 
comprising 75 units of double-storey 
terrace houses, was fully sold. As at 
30 June 2024, Phase 5C and 5D of 
Jesselton Hills, comprising a total of 
137 double-storey terrace houses, 
were close to 95% and over 55%  
sold respectively. 

Impiana Commercial Hub, comprising 
113 units of 2- and 3-storey shop offices 
along Jalan Rozhan, was completed and 
99% sold. The remaining balance unit 
has been leased out as at 30 June 2024.

Mahkota Impian, located at Bukit 
Mertajam, is a mixed development 
comprising three high-rise blocks  
of 360 serviced suites, 23 units of 
3½-storey shop offices and a 5-storey 
shop office. As at 30 June 2024, all 
serviced suites were fully sold, while 
close to 80% of the 3½-storey shop 
offices were sold. The balance unsold 
3½-storey shop offices and 5-storey 
shop offices were about 60%  
rented out.

With the pick-up in business and leisure 
travel, Lanson Place Bukit Ceylon 
Serviced Residences in Kuala Lumpur 
was around 75% occupied as at  
30 June 2024. 

Outfitted with lush green 
spaces for recreation and 
comprehensive amenities, 
Phase 5 of Jesselton Hills  
in Penang, also known as  
Garden Superlink seamlessly 
blends convenience with 
tranquillity. 
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Japan 

The Group’s property business activities 
in Japan are conducted through its special 
purpose vehicle, Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha, 
Winrise (Japan) TMK. 

The Group’s 134-room hotel located in 
Tokyo’s Asakusa district, close to the 
iconic Sensōji-Temple is leased to Far East 
Hospitality Japan KK. Rebranded as  
Far East Village Hotel Tokyo, Asakusa and 
reopened in April 2023, it has achieved 
occupancy rates of close to 90% as at 
30 June 2024, with average daily rate 
surpassing pre-Covid levels. 

China 

The Group’s property business 
activities in China are conducted 
through its subsidiary companies, 
Wing Tai China Pte. Ltd. and Suzhou 
Property Development Pte Ltd. 
In Suzhou, work for Phase 2 of 
The Lakeside comprising 24 units 
of terraced houses is in progress, 
and the project is expected to be 
completed in 2024. 

Catered for the city explorer, 
Far East Village Hotel Tokyo, 
Asakusa offers convenient 
access to both the city’s cultural 
landmarks and the bustling  
city centre.
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Australia 

The Group’s property business 
activities in Australia are conducted 
through its investment arm. 

In December 2023, the Group 
acquired a 2-storey commercial 
property at 11 – 27 Tavistock Place, 
Melbourne, adjacent to the  
Group’s existing property at  
380 Flinders Street.

Preliminary planning works for the 
Group’s freehold 8-storey building in 
St Kilda, Melbourne are ongoing. 

The Group’s Australia portfolio also 
includes two data centres in Mitcham 
and Burwood East, Melbourne as well 
as one data centre in Baulkham Hill, 
Sydney. The Mitcham and Baulkham 
Hill data centres are single-tenanted 
to Vocus Group, while the Burwood 
East data centre is single-tenanted to 
DXC Enterprise.  

Wing Tai acquired a 2-storey 
commercial property at 
11 – 27 Tavistock Place, 

Melbourne, adjacent to the 
Group’s existing property at 

380 Flinders Street.

The data centre at Baulkham 
Hill, Sydney, is fully leased to 
telecommunications company, 
Vocus Group. 
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an independent third party is about 90% 
occupied as at 30 June 2024. The property 
comprises Grade A office and retail spaces 
and ancillary accommodation.

Following an extensive refurbishment 
project led by the world-renowned 
Parisian design maestro Pierre-Yves 
Rochon, Lanson Place Causeway Bay  
hotel reopened on 1 March 2024.  
Inspired by French sophistication and 
elegance, the hotel features 188 guest 
rooms with top-of-the-line amenities 
providing unparalleled comfort away 
from home. Meanwhile, Lanson Place 
Waterfront Suites, the wholly-owned 
prime harbourfront project, was over  
80% occupied by mainly long-term 
business guests as at 30 June 2024. Also 
targeting long-term guests, the serviced 
apartments in Shanghai maintained 
occupancy rates of around 90% as at  
30 June 2024. 

Lanson Place currently has ten  
management contracts across Hong Kong,  
China, Singapore, Malaysia, Philippines  
and Australia. 

Hong Kong

The Group’s property interest in Hong 
Kong is represented by its associated 
company, Wing Tai Properties Limited. 

In the Tuen Mun area, OMA OMA, a 
466-unit residential project located at 
So Kwun Wat Road, was more than 90% 
sold as at 30 June 2024. OMA by the 
Sea, a 517-unit residential development 
located at Castle Peak Road in Tai Lam, 
was also more than 90% sold as at  
30 June 2024.  

In Kau To Shan, Shatin, Le Cap and  
La Vetta are two high-end residential 
projects comprising 227 residential 
units in total. The Group holds 16 
residential units for lease in Le Cap and 
34 residential units for lease in La Vetta, 
respectively. As at 30 June 2024, around 
80% of units in Le Cap and 70% of units 
in La Vetta are leased. 

In Fanling, superstructure work for a 
medium-density residential site near 
Sheung Shui MTR is in progress.  
The project is scheduled for completion 
in 2027.

In Hin Wo Lane, Sha Tin, foundation 
work for a residential site near Tai Wai 
and Hin Keng MTR stations will be 
completed soon. Superstructure work 
will commence thereafter. The project is 
scheduled for completion in 2027.

In Central, superstructure work for the 
mixed-use commercial complex comprising 
a Grade A office tower, hotel, retail shops 
and public open space is in progress. 
Scheduled for completion in 2025, this 
complex is an integral part of the mega 
redevelopment under a government 
masterplan to revitalise Central. 

Commercial property Landmark East  
in Kowloon East has an occupancy rate  
of around 90% as at 30 June 2024.  
Shui Hing Centre, an industrial building 
in Kowloon Bay, was about 80% occupied 
as at 30 June 2024. It has obtained 
redevelopment approval to be converted 
to a commercial building.

The 9-storey commercial property  
located at 30 Gresham Street, London 
acquired through a joint venture with  

Overlooking the coastline of 
Castle Peak Bay, Hong Kong, 
OMA by the Sea offers resort-
inspired living with modern, 
earth-toned aesthetics.
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Retail The Group’s retail business in Singapore 
and Malaysia continued to enhance 
service offerings and customers’  
shopping experience during the year 
under review. 

In Singapore, to showcase the brand’s 
latest TECHWork collection, a G2000 suit 
truck pop-up travelled to Raffles Place 
and tertiary educational institutions to 
engage shoppers through interactive 
games. Meanwhile, G2000 stores in 
Vivocity, Tampines 1 and Waterway 
Point were revamped with refreshed 
store concepts to enhance the shopping 
experience for customers. 

The adidas store in ION Orchard 
underwent major refurbishment and 
reopened in November 2023 as the  
first adidas store in Singapore to feature 
the “Home of Sports” concept which 
celebrates a shared love and passion 
for sports and community. The outlet 
in Bugis Junction was also expanded 
to offer a wider range of products, 
including a kids sportwear section, 
to better cater to consumer demand. 

Additionally, a digital concierge service 
was rolled out in all adidas stores in  
April 2024, offering home delivery of 
out-of-stock items. 

In Malaysia, MANGO continued its 
expansion with the opening of two  
new stores in Pavilion Bukit Jalil and  
The Exchange TRX in Kuala Lumpur. 
In June 2024, MANGO launched its 
online store at shop.mango.com/my 
to broaden its outreach. The Group 
also revamped the stores in Mid Valley 
Megamall, Kuala Lumpur and Gurney 
Plaza Mall, Penang to feature MANGO’s 
new Mediterranean-inspired concept,  
“New Med”, which reflects the spirit 
and energy of the brand. 

Sergent Major opened two stores in  
1 Utama Shopping Mall, Selangor and 
SEIBU, a luxury department store, in 
The Exchange TRX, Kuala Lumpur. To 
strengthen its regional outreach, the 
brand was launched and went live on 
Zalora across five regions – Malaysia, 
Singapore, Taiwan, Hong Kong and 
Philippines – in August 2024. 

In March 2024, the Malaysia retail 
business rebranded its loyalty 
programme from F3 to wt+. This aligned 
the Group’s retail loyalty programme 
in Singapore and Malaysia, enabling 
members to enjoy discounts and offers 
across the Group’s retail brands in  
both countries.  

Joint venture brand UNIQLO continued 
to be a staple brand in both markets, 
operating a total of 29 stores in 
Singapore and 61 stores in Malaysia as 
at 30 June 2024. UNIQLO has also been 
appointed the official Clothing Partner  
to Singapore’s delegates & officials of 
2024 Summer Paralympics Games held 
in Paris. 

MANGO and Sergent 
Major continued 
to strengthen their 
presence in Malaysia 
with the opening of  
new physical and  
online stores.   

G2000 redefines office wear 
by combining chic style with 
comfort to create the ideal 
executive wardrobe. 
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July 2023 
The LakeGarden Residences 
was awarded the BCA 
Green Mark Platinum Super 
Low Energy certification, 
Singapore  

August 2023
Commemorated and 
celebrated Wing Tai’s  
60th Anniversary,  
Singapore

Released full-year results  
for financial year ended  
30 June 2023, Singapore

Launched sales of  
The LakeGarden Residences, 
Wing Tai’s first sustainable 
development, Singapore

Obtained TOP for  
The M at Middle Road, 
Singapore

Launched Sergent Major on 
Zalora Malaysia, Singapore, 
Taiwan, Hong Kong and 
Philippines  

September 2023
Lanson Place Bukit Ceylon, 
Kuala Lumpur won 
“Malaysia’s Leading Serviced 
Apartments 2023” for the 
seventh consecutive year at 
the World Travel Awards, 
Malaysia

October 2023
The LakeGarden Residences 
won three awards at the 
annual PropertyGuru 
Asia Property Awards 
(Singapore) for – Best Green 
Development, Best Nature 
Integrated Development 
and the Highly Commended 
Best Private Condo 
Development, Singapore

Unveiled Urban Living  
Art Collaboration with  
LASALLE College of the Arts 
at The M at Middle Road, 
featuring four unique art 
installations curated by 
alumni of LASALLE which 
harmonise and enliven the 
environment for residents  
of The M at Middle Road, 
Singapore

Reopened revamped 
MANGO store in Mid Valley 
Megamall with “New Med” 
concept, Kuala Lumpur, 
Malaysia 

Opened Sergent Major store 
in 1 Utama Shopping Mall, 
Selangor, Malaysia

Received appreciation  
at Community Chest’s 
40th year charity show for 
efforts in supporting the 
underprivileged and needy, 
Singapore

Participated in a charity 
food fair, organised 
by Pertubuhan Rumah 
Kebajikan Seri Cahaya  
Pulau Pinang, to raise funds 
for underprivileged children 
and homeless elderly, 
Penang, Malaysia  

November 2023
Retail staff from G2000 
and adidas achieved 
the Singapore Retailers 
Association Excellent  
Service Award 2023 (Silver) 
for providing exceptional 
service to shoppers, 
Singapore

Reopened refurbished 
adidas store in ION Orchard, 
Singapore’s first  
“Home of Sport” concept 
store, Singapore

Opened MANGO store  
at The Exchange TRX,  
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 

Opened Sergent Major store 
in SEIBU Department Store 
at The Exchange TRX,  
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Lanson Place Bukit Ceylon, 
Kuala Lumpur won “Best 
Luxury Boutique Serviced 
Apartments in Asia 2023”, 
“Best General Manager in 
South East Asia 2023” and 
“Best Luxury Contemporary 
Serviced Apartments – 
Global Winner 2023” at the 
World Luxury Hotel Awards, 
Malaysia

December 2023
Acquired 11 – 27  
Tavistock Place,  
Melbourne, Australia

Opened MANGO store  
in Pavilion Bukit Jalil,  
Kuala Lumpur,  
Malaysia

Opened expanded adidas 
store in Bugis Junction, 
Singapore

Organised Wing Tai-Boys’ 
Brigade Share-a-Gift 
initiative to support needy 
families, Singapore

Year in  
Brief
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February 2024
Released half-year results 
ended 31 December 2023, 
Singapore

Organised visit to  
NTUC Health Co-operative 
Limited Senior Day Care 
(Serangoon Central) to 
celebrate Lunar New Year, 
Singapore

Organised visit to  
Seri Setia Home for the 
Aged to celebrate Lunar 
New Year, Petaling Jaya, 
Malaysia

Organised visit to  
Shelter Home (For Children), 
Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

March 2024 
Announced the 
establishment of a new 
S$1 billion Multicurrency 
Debt Issuance Programme, 
Singapore

Held groundbreaking 
ceremony to mark the  
start of construction of  
The LakeGarden Residences, 
Singapore

Launched G2000’s  
Suit Specialist Service  
at ION Orchard store, 
Singapore

Rebranded retail loyalty 
programme to wt+  
to align with Singapore, 
Malaysia

Reopened revamped 
MANGO store in Gurney 
Plaza Mall with “New Med” 
concept, Penang, Malaysia

Introduced MANGO 
Recycling Box initiative  
in all MANGO stores for 
shoppers to donate their 
used clothing, Malaysia

Lanson Place Causeway Bay 
reopened after extensive 
refurbishment by world-
renowned Parisian hotel 
designer, Pierre-Yves 
Rochon, Hong Kong

Supported PUB’s  
Singapore World Water  
Day to raise awareness  
on the importance of  
water conservation, 
Singapore

Participated in Earth Hour 
to support environmental 
sustainability, Singapore, 
Malaysia and China

April 2024
Launched digital  
concierge service  
in all adidas stores, 
Singapore

Launched wt+ recycling 
programme across all 
Malaysia retail stores for 
shoppers to donate used 
clothing for recycling, 
Malaysia   

Lanson Place Mall of Asia 
officially opened in  
Manila, Philippines

May 2024
Two Lanson Place hotels  
and serviced residences  
won awards at 2024 
TripAdvisor Travellers’ 
Choice Award, Hong Kong, 
Malaysia

Two MacDonnell Road was 
awarded 2024 TripAdvisor 
Travellers’ Choice Awards 
“Best of the Best” for the 
second consecutive year, 
ranking in the top 25 hotels 
in China, as well as the top 
1% hotels worldwide,  
Hong Kong

Participated in a  
tree-planting activity  
and planted 120 trees  
to rehabilitate the  
Raja Musa Forest Reserve  
in Selangor, Malaysia 

June 2024
Awarded 99-year  
leasehold land parcel 
at River Valley Green, 
Singapore

Launched MANGO’s  
online store,  
shop.mango.com/my,  
Malaysia

Organised food drive  
to support needy  
elderly patients at  
Kwong Wai Shiu Hospital,  
Singapore 

Organised blood donation 
drive in conjunction with  
World Blood Donor Day,  
Malaysia 

17.ANNUAL REPORT 2024     PROGRESSING WITH CONVICTION

http://shop.mango.com/my


Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Wing Tai remains 
committed to contribute 
to the community in 
meaningful ways. 

Wing Tai Foundation

The Group is committed to fulfilling its 
corporate social responsibility through 
Wing Tai Foundation which extends 
financial aid and donations-in-kind to 
the needy elderly and underprivileged 
young. Through these initiatives,  
Wing Tai recognises the contributions  
of the elderly in Singapore’s nation-
building and does its part to nurture  
the younger generation.

In the year under review, the Group 
continued to support the needs of 
disadvantaged children and elderly 
through donations to Care for the Elderly 
Foundation (Singapore), Chen Su Lan 
Methodist Children’s Home, Community 
Chest and NTUC-U Care Fund. The Group 
was recognised for its commitment to 
support the underprivileged and  
received appreciation at Community 
Chest’s 40th year charity show. 

A dollar-for-dollar donation matching 
programme under the Foundation also 
supplements employees’ support of 
charities which cater to the needy  
young and elderly in Singapore.

Beyond financial giving, the Group 
strived to create positive and 
meaningful impact through community 

engagements. During the year under 
review, the Group reaffirmed its 
support for Kwong Wai Shiu Hospital 
through its annual food donation 
drive where employees donated 
more than 900 food items. The 
Group also collected over 2,000 food 
and household items for the annual 
Boys’ Brigade Share-a-Gift project 
– a community programme which 
collects and distributes food and daily 
necessities to the less fortunate during 
the festive season. This year, staff 
volunteers also went door-to-door  
to deliver the packed hampers  
to beneficiaries. 

To celebrate Lunar New Year, 
employees in Singapore engaged with 
seniors of NTUC Health Co-operative 
Limited Senior Day Care (Serangoon 
Central) over games, sing-along and 
handicraft sessions where red packets 
were upcycled into festive decorations. 
Seniors were also treated to a 
delightful high tea spread and took 
home goodie bags containing festive 
treats and mandarins. 

Meanwhile, employees in Malaysia 
spread festive cheer to the elderly 
residents of Seri Setia Home for the 
Aged in Petaling Jaya, Malaysia with  
a “lou hei” lunch. 

They also visited beneficiaries of 
Shelter Home (For Children), bringing 
joy through games and donating 
school essentials. They participated 
in a charity food fair, organised by 
Pertubuhan Rumah Kebajikan Seri 
Cahaya Pulau Pinang, to raise funds for 
underprivileged children and homeless 
elderly. Additionally, they contributed 
to environmental conservation and 
supported the rehabilitation of the 
Raja Musa Forest Reserve in Selangor, 
Malaysia by planting 120 trees. 

The Group remains firmly committed to 
fulfilling its role as an active corporate 
citizen. Together with our staff, we 
will continue to contribute to the 
community in meaningful ways. 

Staff volunteers engaged senior 
members of the community 
at NTUC Health Co-operative 
Senior Day Care to celebrate 
Lunar New Year.
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Board Matters

Principle 1: 

The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The company is headed by an 
effective Board which is collectively 
responsible and works with 
Management for the long-term 
success of the company.

The Board is responsible for the overall 
management of the Company, and the 
Directors make important decisions 
objectively in the best interests of the 
Company. 

The principal functions of the Board 
include:-

•	 providing overall strategy and 
direction for the Company and its 
subsidiaries (the “Group”);

•	 reviewing the corporate policies and 
financial performance of the Group; 

•	 reviewing the Management’s 
performance;

•	 establishing an enterprise risk 
management framework of prudent 
and effective controls to assess and 
manage risks; 

•	 considering sustainability issues 
including environmental and social 
factors, as part of its strategic 
formulation;

•	 identifying the key stakeholder groups 
and recognising that their perceptions 
affect the Company’s reputation; and 

•	 setting the Company’s values and 
standards (including ethical standards) 
and ensuring that obligations to 
shareholders and other stakeholders 
are understood and met. 

Directors, as fiduciaries, act objectively 
in the best interests of the Company 
and hold the Management accountable 
for the Company’s performance. The 
Board implements a code of conduct and 
ethics, sets appropriate tone-from-the-
top and desired organisational culture, 
and ensures proper accountability within 
the Company. Directors facing conflicts 
of interest recuse themselves from 
discussions and decisions involving the 
issues of conflict (Provision 1.1). 

The Board conducts meetings on a 
half-yearly basis in accordance with 
Rule 705 of the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) 
Listing Manual and whenever necessary 
as circumstances arise. A total of four 
scheduled Board meetings were held 
in the financial year ended 30 June 
2024 (“FY2024”). To assist the Board in 
discharging its duties and functions, the 
Board has delegated authorities to the 
Board Committees, namely the Audit & 
Risk Committee (“ARC”), Remuneration 
Committee (“RC”) and Nominating 
Committee (“NC”). Each of the ARC, 
RC and NC has been constituted with 
terms of reference setting out their 
composition, authorities and duties 
approved by the Board and may 
recommend and/or decide on matters 
within their terms of reference. The 
Board reviews the composition of the 
membership of the Board Committees 
whenever appropriate. The names of 
the committee members, the terms of 
reference, any delegation of the Board’s 
authority to make decisions and a 
summary of each committee’s activities 
are disclosed in this Annual Report 
(Provision 1.4).

Corporate 
Governance
Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Wing Tai Holdings Limited 
(the “Company”) is committed 
to ensuring high standards 
of corporate governance in 
its conduct of business by 
adopting a comprehensive 
corporate governance 
framework to enhance best 
practice principles including 
accountability, transparency 
and sustainability. 

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or 
“Directors”) recognises that efforts to 
achieve the above requires effective 
corporate policies, processes and 
practices in compliance with the 
principles and provisions of the Code of 
Corporate Governance 2018 (the “Code”) 
as outlined herein. Where there is any 
deviation from the Code, appropriate 
explanations are provided in this 
report on each area of non-compliance, 
and how the Company’s practices 
are consistent with the intent and 
philosophy of the principle concerned.
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The details of the Directors’ attendance at the Board and Board Committee meetings and Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) in 
FY2024 are set out in the table below (Provision 1.5).

Board
Audit & Risk 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Nominating 
Committee AGM

Meetings Held:
4

Meetings Held: 
3

Meetings Held: 
2

Meeting Held: 
1

Meeting Held:
1

Name
Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Attended

Meetings 
Attended

Meeting 
Attended

Meeting 
Attended

Cheng Wai Keung 4 – – 1 1

Edmund Cheng Wai Wing 4 – – – 1

Cheng Man Tak 4 – – – 1

Eric Ang Teik Lim 4 3 – 1 1

Mildred Tan 4 3 2 – 1

Kwa Kim Li (a) 4 1 2 – 1

Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel (b) 4 2 2 1 1

Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang 4 – – – 1

Tan Hwee Bin 3 – – – 1

(a)	 Ms Kwa Kim Li was appointed Chairman of the NC on 1 January 2024 and stepped down as a member of the ARC on 1 January 2024.
(b)	 Mr Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel was appointed as a member of the ARC on 1 January 2024 and stepped down as Chairman of the NC on  

1 January 2024.

When a Director serves on multiple 
boards of different companies, that 
Director ensures that sufficient time  
and attention is allocated to the affairs  
of each company with assistance from the 
Management, which regularly provides 
relevant and complete information to 
that Director for the effective discharge 
of his/her duties. 

To address the competing time 
commitments that a Director may face  
in holding multiple board appointments, 
the internal guideline recommended 
by the NC provides that the maximum 
number of listed company board 
representations which any Director 
may hold at any one point in time is 
five directorships. The NC is satisfied 
that for FY2024, each of the Directors 
has given sufficient time and attention 
in discharging his/her responsibilities 
as Director by providing invaluable 
guidance, advice and support to the 
Group (Provision 1.5).

Besides physical meetings, the 
Constitution of the Company 
(“Constitution”) allows the Directors 
to participate in Board and Board 
Committee meetings by way of 
telephone, video conference or  
other similar means of communication 
equipment whereby all persons 
participating in the meetings are  
able to hear each other. In this regard, 
alternative means of participation  
by way of telephone and video 
conference have been adopted in  
the Board and Board Committee 
meetings, whenever necessary.

Matters which require the Board’s 
approval include, inter alia, those 
involving material acquisition and 
disposal of assets of the Company,  
annual budget, financial results 
announcements, annual report and 
financial statements, distribution 
of dividends and other returns to 
shareholders, fund raising exercises, 

corporate and financial restructuring, 
and interested person transactions of  
a material nature (Provision 1.3). 

Upon appointment of each Director,  
the Company will provide a formal 
letter to the Director, setting out 
clearly the Director’s duties and 
obligations. Newly appointed 
Directors are given orientation 
briefings by the Management, 
including site visits to the Company’s 
assets to ensure that they are 
familiar with the Group’s businesses, 
directions and policies. The Board 
is regularly updated on the latest 
amendments to the law as well as 
changes to regulations and accounting 
standards. Every Director will receive 
further relevant training or briefings 
by professionals from time to time 
and where relevant, particularly 
on the enactment of new laws and 
regulations as well as on new or 
emerging commercial risks.  
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Visits to overseas sites are also arranged 
for the Directors to better understand 
the Group’s overseas investments and 
projects. The Company Secretary readily 
keeps the Directors informed as and 
when there are appropriate courses, 
conferences and seminars such as those 
conducted by the Singapore Institute  
of Directors and external counsels 
(Provision 1.2). 

The Directors are encouraged to regularly 
attend trainings funded by the Company. 
During FY2024, the Directors attended 
a number of courses and webinars/
seminars, namely, “Cybersecurity 
Training” and “Temasek Roundtable 
2024”, conducted by reputable 
professional organisations. All Directors 
had completed the training prescribed 
by SGX-ST on sustainability matters in 
FY2023 pursuant to Rule 720(7) of the 
SGX-ST Listing Manual.

Beyond the confines of formal Board 
meetings, Directors also share their 
insights, experience, strategic networking 
relationships and advice from time to  
time which adds value to and furthers  
the interests of the Company.

Prior to each meeting and whenever the 
need arises, the Board is furnished with 
complete and adequate information in a 
timely manner to enable full deliberation 
of the issues to be considered. To ensure  
that the Board is able to fulfil its 
responsibilities, the Management readily 
provides the Board with board papers 
and related materials, background or 
explanatory information and copies of 
disclosure documents, management 
reports, forecasts, budgets, financial 
statements and other relevant 
information of the Group on a  
half-yearly basis prior to meetings,  
and on an on-going basis whenever 
necessary (Provision 1.6). 

The Board has separate and independent 
access to the Management and the 
Company Secretary at all times. Directors 
are entitled to request from and are 

provided by the Management, in a 
timely manner, with such additional 
information as may be needed to 
make informed decisions. The Board 
also seeks independent professional 
advice at the Company’s expense as and 
when necessary to enable the Directors 
(whether individually or as a group) to 
discharge their responsibilities effectively. 

The Company Secretary attends all 
Board meetings and ensures that Board 
procedures are strictly adhered to.  
The Company Secretary, together 
with the Management, also ensure 
that the Company complies with all 
applicable statutory and regulatory 
rules. In addition, the Company 
Secretary ensures that there is good 
information flow within the Board and 
the Board Committees, and between 
the Management and non-executive 
Directors. The Company Secretary 
facilitates orientation and professional 
development of the Directors as may be 
required. The appointment and removal 
of the Company Secretary is subject to 
the approval of the Board (Provision 1.7). 

Principle 2: 

Board Composition and Guidance

The Board has an appropriate level 
of independence and diversity 
of thought and background in its 
composition to enable it to make 
decisions in the best interests of  
the company.

The Board currently comprises a majority 
of non-executive Directors, with more 
than one-half of the Board being 
made up of independent Directors as 
the Chairman of the Board is also the 
Managing Director (Provisions 2.2 & 2.3). 
 
The NC reviews the independence of each 
Director annually based on the definition 
of “independence” as prescribed in the 
SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Code to 
ensure that there is a strong element of 
independence and autonomy on the Board.  

Pursuant to the Code, an “independent” 
director is one who is independent in 
conduct, character and judgement, and 
has no relationship with the company, 
its related corporations, its substantial 
shareholders or its officers that could 
interfere, or be reasonably perceived 
to interfere, with the exercise of 
the director’s independent business 
judgement in the best interests of the 
company (Provision 2.1). There is  
no existence of a relationship as stated  
in the Code that would otherwise  
deem any independent Director to be 
non-independent.
 
There are currently nine members 
on the Board, three of whom are 
executive Directors and five of whom are 
independent non-executive Directors 
(Provisions 2.2 & 2.3). To further enhance 
the independence of the Board and the 
Board Committees, it is the Company’s 
policy that no Director or independent 
Director sits on all three Committees,  
the ARC, RC and NC. Independent  
non-executive Directors, led by the Lead 
Independent Director, meet periodically 
without the presence of Management  
and will provide feedback to the Board 
and/or its Chairman, as appropriate 
(Provision 2.5).

Board Diversity

The Company has a board diversity  
policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) to give 
due consideration to the benefits of 
diversity when appointing members to 
the Board. The Board Diversity Policy 
recognises that a diverse Board will 
better support the Company in attaining 
its strategic objectives and sustainable 
development. In reviewing the Board’s 
composition and recommending the 
appointment of directors to the Board, 
the NC will consider candidates on merit 
and with due regard for the benefits of 
all aspects of diversity, including but not 
limited to industry knowledge, skills, 
experience, professional qualification, 
gender and age. 
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As recommended by the NC, the Board 
recognises that gender is an important 
aspect of diversity and strives to ensure 
appropriate female representation 
on the Board based on the Board’s 
objectives. As of FY2024, the Board has 
achieved a 33.33% female representation 
on the Board. This is higher than the 
23.7% women on board reported by the 
Council for Board Diversity for the Top 
100 primary-listed companies on the 
Singapore Exchange as at 31 December 
2023. To further the Board’s commitment 
to gender diversity, Ms Kwa Kim Li 
succeeded Mr Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel 
as the Chairman of the NC on 1 January 
2024 following a rotation of NC Chairman 
every five years as stipulated in the  
NC terms of reference. There are now, 
two out of the three Board Committees 
chaired by female Directors and all  
Board Committees have at least one 
female representative. 

The Company has ensured that there is 
at least one independent Director on 
the Board who has experience in the 
industry in which the Company operates. 
The Board will examine its size and 
composition whenever circumstances 
require (Provision 2.4). The Company 
adopts the principle of collective 
decision-making process and hence,  
no individual or smaller group of 
individuals will dominate the Board’s 
decision-making process. 

The Board comprises Directors who have 
diverse qualifications and backgrounds  
in areas such as banking, finance, 
business and law. The independent  
non-executive Directors have exposure to 
the industry in which the Group operates. 
Given the present scope and nature of 
the Company’s operations, the Board 
considers its current size and profile of 
its members, whose core competencies, 
qualifications, skills and experience are 
diverse, extensive and complementary, 
to be appropriate. The NC will review 
and make recommendations to the Board 
to revise the Board Diversity Policy from 
time to time to ensure effectiveness and 
relevance of the policy.

The profiles of the Directors are set out 
on pages 4 to 6 of this Annual Report. 

Principle 3: 

Chairman and  
Chief Executive Officer 

There is a clear division of 
responsibilities between the 
leadership of the Board and 
Management, and no one  
individual has unfettered powers  
of decision-making.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr Cheng 
Wai Keung, is also the Managing Director 
(“MD”) of the Group and has overall 
responsibility for the management and 
operations of the Group. 

In order to address the issue of 
independence given that the Chairman 
and the MD are the same person, the 
Board has formally appointed Mr Eric 
Ang Teik Lim as Lead Independent 
Director to serve as a sounding board 
for the Chairman and also as an 
intermediary between the non-executive 
Directors and the Chairman to ensure an 
appropriate balance of power, increased 
accountability and greater capacity of 
the Board for independent decision-
making. In addition, Mr Eric Ang Teik 
Lim is available to the shareholders 
whenever they have any concerns which 
cannot be resolved or which may not be 
appropriate to be raised through normal 
contact channels of the MD or the Group 
Chief Financial Officer (“Group CFO”) 
(Provisions 3.1 & 3.3).

Mr Cheng Wai Keung’s primary role as 
Chairman of the Board is to lead the 
Board in developing sound policies and 
strategies for the Company, ensuring 
that they are implemented effectively, 
as well as promoting high standards of 
corporate governance. Mr Cheng Wai 
Keung also provides leadership to the 
Board, ensuring that Board meetings are 
held regularly and promoting a culture 
of open and constructive debate, with 
Board members being provided with 

complete and timely information.  
As the MD, Mr Cheng Wai Keung makes 
key decisions on the management 
and operations of the Group and is 
responsible for the conduct of the 
business and affairs of the Group, 
supported by the key management.  
The growth of the Company under  
Mr Cheng Wai Keung’s leadership 
over the years clearly demonstrates his 
ability to discharge the responsibilities 
of both his roles as Chairman and MD 
effectively (Provision 3.2). 

Principle 4: 

Board Membership

The Board has a formal and 
transparent process for the 
appointment and re-appointment 
of directors, taking into account the 
need for progressive renewal of  
the Board.

To assist the Board in the discharge 
of its responsibilities and to enhance 
the Company’s corporate governance 
framework, the Board, without 
abdicating its responsibility, delegates 
specific functions to the various  
Board Committees, namely, the 
ARC, RC and NC. Each of these Board 
Committees has its own terms of 
reference and reports its activities 
regularly to the Board. 

The NC has adopted its own specific 
written terms of reference. The 
principal functions of the NC are to 
make recommendations to the Board 
for succession plans for Directors, the 
appointment and re-appointment of 
Directors to the Board and to review the 
independence of each Director annually 
and as and when circumstances require.  
The NC also recommends to the Board  
the process and criteria for evaluation 
of the performance of the Board, the 
Board Committees and the individual  
Directors. In addition, the NC reviews  
the training and professional 
development programmes for the 
Board and its Directors (Provision 4.1).
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The NC comprises three members,  
the majority of whom, including the 
Chairman of the NC, are independent 
non-executive Directors. The NC members 
are Ms Kwa Kim Li – Chairman of the NC 
(who succeeded Mr Guy Daniel Harvey-
Samuel on 1 January 2024), Mr Eric Ang 
Teik Lim, Lead Independent Director and 
Mr Cheng Wai Keung (Provision 4.2). 

Pursuant to the Company’s Constitution 
and in compliance with Rule 720(5) of 
the SGX-ST Listing Manual, one-third 
of the Directors are required to submit 
themselves for re-nomination and  
re-election at least once every three  
years. The Directors to retire every year  
at the AGM shall be those who have  
been longest in office since their last  
re-election, and as between persons  
who became Directors on the same day, 
those to retire shall be determined by lot.  
A newly appointed Director will hold 
office until the next AGM following  
his/her appointment and he/she will be 
eligible for re-election. The Company  
has no alternate Directors. 

For Directors seeking re-election, 
“Additional Information on Directors 
Seeking Re-Election” are set out on  
pages 33 to 36 of this Annual Report 
pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the SGX-ST 
Listing Manual.

The NC will review and make 
recommendations on board succession 
plans for Directors and the composition of 
the Board from time to time, and search 
for and identify suitable candidates with 
the right qualifications, expertise and 
experience to be appointed as Directors. 
Each candidate will be evaluated based 
on his/her ability to enhance the Board’s 
capabilities through his/her contributions 
in his/her area of expertise and how to 
improve the Group’s business strategies, 
controls and/or corporate governance 
(Provision 4.3).

All Directors and members of the Board 
are appointed following a comprehensive 
and extensive external search based on 
their credentials and qualities.
 

When considering the independence 
of Directors, the NC also reviews the 
annual declaration by the independent 
non-executive Directors regarding 
their independence and the Directors’ 
disclosures of interests in transactions 
(Provision 4.4).

For first-time directors, the Company 
provides briefing in areas such as 
accounting, legal or such other industry-
specific knowledge, where appropriate. 
As mentioned above, upon appointment 
of each Director, the Company will 
provide a formal letter to the Director, 
setting out clearly the Director’s duties 
and obligations to ensure that the new 
Director is aware of his/her duties and 
obligations. The NC decides if a Director 
is able to and has been adequately 
carrying out his/her duties as a Director 
of the Company (Provision 4.5).

Principle 5: 

Board Performance 

The Board undertakes a formal 
annual assessment of its 
effectiveness as a whole, and that  
of each of its board committees  
and individual directors.

With the assistance of KPMG Services Pte 
Ltd (“KPMG”), the Company’s objective 
performance criteria and process for 
the evaluation of the effectiveness of 
the Board was developed, established 
and approved for use to ascertain 
the effectiveness of the Board as a 
whole, its Board Committees and each 
Director. This framework is reviewed and 
refined annually or when required, to 
incorporate better practices to ensure the 
assessment process remains relevant and 
effective (Provision 5.1).

The NC’s assessment of the effectiveness 
and performance of the Board as a 
whole and its Board Committees is 
conducted on an annual basis (by 
circulating the evaluation forms for the 
Board and Board Committees amongst 
the Directors) taking into account the 

level of participation and contribution 
of each individual Director towards the 
Board’s effectiveness and competencies, 
as well as the strategic insight, financial 
literacy, business judgement, integrity 
and relevant industry knowledge 
rendered for the benefit of the Group. 
The aim of the assessment is to evaluate 
whether each Director is able to and 
continues to contribute effectively and 
demonstrate commitment to his/her role. 
Individual evaluation and self-assessment 
of each Director are also conducted on 
an annual basis. Additional performance 
criteria based on the Code has also been 
adopted. These performance criteria 
allow for comparison with industry peers 
and go towards enhancing long-term 
shareholder value. Based on the results 
of the evaluation, the Board has met its 
performance objectives (Provision 5.2).

The Chairman of the Board will act on 
the results of the evaluation and, in 
consultation with the NC, may, where 
appropriate, propose new members to 
be appointed to the Board or seek the 
resignation of Directors.

Remuneration Matters 

Principle 6: 

Procedures for Developing 
Remuneration Policies

The Board has a formal and 
transparent procedure for 
developing policies on director and 
executive remuneration, and for 
fixing the remuneration packages 
of individual directors and key 
management personnel. No director 
is involved in deciding his or her 
own remuneration.

The RC comprises three members,  
all of whom, including the Chairman of 
the RC, are independent non-executive 
Directors. The RC members are  
Mrs Mildred Tan – Chairman of the RC,  
Mr Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel and  
Ms Kwa Kim Li (Provision 6.2). 
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The RC has adopted its own specific 
written terms of reference. The 
principal functions of the RC are  
to review and recommend to the  
Board a general framework for 
remuneration within the Company  
and the specific remuneration 
packages for each Director as well as 
for the key management personnel 
of the Group (Provision 6.1). As and 
when required, the RC obtains 
independent and professional advice 
on remuneration matters (including 
but not limited to Directors’ fees, 
salaries, allowances, bonuses, share-
based incentives and awards, and 
benefits-in-kind) from human resource 
advisers and an external management 
consultancy firm specialising in 
people-pay-performance management 
strategies, Carrots Consulting Pte  
Ltd (“Carrots”). Other than its 
professional appointment, Carrots 
has no affiliation or relationship with 
the Company or any of its Directors 
that will affect the independence and 
objectivity of its performance  
(Provision 6.4). The RC reviews the 
structure of the remuneration 
packages for the Directors and key 
management personnel to ensure that 
they are competitive and sufficient 
to attract, retain and motivate key 
executives. No Director is involved in 
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The RC reviews the Company’s 
obligations arising in relation to 
termination of the executive Directors’ 
and key management personnel’s 
contracts of service, to ensure that 
such contracts of service contain fair 
and reasonable terms of termination 
which are industry norm and not overly 
generous, onerous or adverse to the 
Company. There are no termination, 
retirement or post-employment 
benefits granted to the executive 
Directors and key management 
personnel (Provision 6.3).

Principle 7: 

Level and Mix of Remuneration

The level and structure of 
remuneration of the Board and 
key management personnel are 
appropriate and proportionate  
to the sustained performance and 
value creation of the company, 
taking into account the strategic 
objectives of the company.

The Company’s remuneration framework 
for executive Directors and key 
management personnel comprises a 
fixed component (in the form of a base 
salary, annual wage supplement, fixed 
allowances where applicable, together 
with other benefits-in-kind in accordance 
with the Company’s prevailing human 
resource policies), and a variable 
component in the form of variable 
bonuses, as well as share plans, where 
applicable. The remuneration packages 
take into account the individual’s 
performance, the Group’s overall 
performance, as well as acceptable 
market practices and employment 
conditions within the industry. Such 
performance-related remuneration 
takes into account the risk policies of the 
Company, is symmetric to risk outcomes 
and is sensitive to the time horizon of 
risks. In assessing the performance of the 
executive Directors and key management 
personnel, the RC takes into account the 
financial and operational performance 
of the Group. Carrots undertakes 
a benchmarking exercise on the 
remuneration packages of the executive 
Directors and key management personnel 
of the Group on an annual basis. 

The Company seeks to remunerate all 
employees based on their individual 
performances and contributions towards 
the Company. To this end, the Company 
has in place a robust performance 
management system to appraise 
employees’ performance against a set of 
key performance indicators on an annual 

basis. Performance-related remuneration 
is aligned with the interests of 
shareholders and other stakeholders 
which promotes the long-term success  
of the Company (Provision 7.1).

Non-executive Directors are paid a 
fixed fee appropriate to their level 
of contribution, taking into account 
factors such as effort, time spent, and 
responsibilities. Directors who serve on 
Board Committees receive higher fees for 
the additional responsibilities they take 
on. The Company recognises that non-
executive Directors should not be over-
compensated to the extent that their 
independence may be compromised. 
All Directors’ fees are approved by 
shareholders at the AGM of the Company 
before they are paid (Provision 7.2). 

The Company uses the Wing Tai 
Performance Share Plan (“Wing Tai PSP”) 
and the Wing Tai Restricted Share Plan 
(“Wing Tai RSP”) to incentivise both 
employees and Directors to promote 
the long-term success of the Company. 
The performance conditions which 
the Wing Tai PSP seeks to promote are 
broader targets aimed at sustaining 
more extensive and longer-term growth, 
and they are set over a three-year 
performance period. On the other hand, 
the performance conditions prescribed 
under the Wing Tai RSP are shorter-
term targets aimed at encouraging 
continued service, and the shares have 
a vesting schedule of three years. Other 
than the Wing Tai PSP and Wing Tai RSP 
(collectively “Share Plan Shares”) granted 
to the Executive Director, Ms Tan Hwee 
Bin, no Share Plan Shares was granted 
to the other Directors during FY2024 
(Provision 7.3).

The RC has the discretion not to award 
variable incentive in any year if an 
executive Director or a key management 
personnel is involved in exceptional 
circumstances of misstatement of 
financial results or misconduct resulting 
in financial loss to the Company.  
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The Company currently has contractual 
provisions to allow the Company 
to reclaim incentive components of 
remuneration from executive Directors 
and key management personnel in  
such circumstances. 

Principle 8: 

Disclosure on Remuneration

The company is transparent on 
its remuneration policies, level 
and mix of remuneration, the 
procedure for setting remuneration, 
and the relationships between 
remuneration, performance and 
value creation.

The remuneration packages of Directors 
and key management personnel are a 
competitive advantage of the Group. 
The Company uses both short-term and 
long-term incentives such as variable 
bonus and share plans, to motivate its 
executive Directors and employees to 

deliver greater performance for the 
Company. The fixed component is in 
the form of a base salary. The variable 
component is in the form of a variable 
bonus and share plans that are linked 
to the performance of the Group and 
each individual’s performance, which is 
based on the criteria of the respective 
key performance indicators allocated 
to the individual. The key performance 
indicators include the Company’s 
profitability and other financial and 
operational indicators as determined 
by the Board. Staff appraisals are 
conducted once a year. The executive 
Directors do not receive Directors’ fees. 

Provision 8.1 of the Code recommends 
that companies fully disclose the 
remuneration of each individual director 
and their CEO, and that they should 
name and disclose the remuneration of 
at least their top five key management 
personnel (who are not directors or the 
CEO) in bands no wider than $250,000, 
including the aggregate remuneration 

paid to these top five key management 
personnel. Provision 8.3 of the Code 
also recommends that companies 
disclose all forms of remuneration and 
other payments and benefits as well 
as details of employee share schemes. 
The Company has chosen to make 
disclosures in bands of $250,000 with 
a breakdown in percentage terms 
of fees, base salary, bonus, share 
awards and other benefits for all the 
Directors, including the MD, executive 
Directors, and key management 
personnel. The Company is of the 
view that Principle 8 of the Code was 
met, as the remuneration policies, the 
procedure for setting remuneration 
for the MD, executive Directors and 
key management personnel as well as 
the level and mix of remuneration are 
disclosed on pages 25 to 26 and taking 
into account the confidential and 
sensitive nature of such information, 
specific disclosure would otherwise 
place the Group in a competitively 
disadvantageous position. 

The breakdown (in percentage terms) of the Directors’ remuneration paid in FY2024 is as follows (Provisions 8.1(a) & 8.3):- 

Remuneration Bands
Fees 
(%)

Salary 
(%)

Bonus 
(%)

Other 
Benefits 

(%)
Total 

(%)

Shares 
granted 

during  
the year

$2,750,001 to $3,000,000

Cheng Wai Keung – 49 41 10 100 –

$2,500,001 to $2,750,000

Edmund Cheng Wai Wing – 45 38 17 100 –

$2,000,001 to $2,250,000

Tan Hwee Bin – 40 39  21^ 100 232,000

Below $250,000

Cheng Man Tak 100 – – – 100 –

Eric Ang Teik Lim 100 – – – 100 –

Mildred Tan 100 – – – 100 –

Kwa Kim Li 100 – – – 100 –

Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel 100 – – – 100 –

Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang 100 – – – 100 –

^	 Includes the fair value of restricted shares and performance shares.
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The breakdown (in percentage terms) of the remuneration of the top six key management personnel in bands of $250,000 paid in 
FY2024 is set out below. The total remuneration paid to the six key management personnel for FY2024 amounted to $5.635 million 
(Provisions 8.1(b) & 8.3).

Remuneration Bands
Salary 

(%)
Bonus 

(%)

Other 
Benefits 

(%)

Share
Awards^ 

(%)
Total 

(%)

$1,250,001 to $1,500,000

Helen Chow 56 32 12 0 100

$750,001 to $1,000,000

Ng Kim Huat 49 32 4 15 100

Karine Lim 47 34 4 15 100

Stacey Ow Yeong 51 28 6 15 100

Joseph Quek 52 26 6 16 100

$500,001 to $750,000

Jim Lau 58 20 7 15 100

^	 Includes the fair value of restricted shares and performance shares (where applicable).

Ms Helen Chow is the spouse of 
the MD, Mr Cheng Wai Keung and 
also one of the six key management 
personnel whose remuneration is 
disclosed in bands of $250,000.  
Mrs Kit Cheng, who is the spouse of 
the Deputy Managing Director,  
Mr Edmund Cheng Wai Wing, 
received remuneration that is 
between $200,000 and $300,000 
during FY2024 (Provision 8.2). 

Provision 8.2 of the Code provides,  
inter alia, that the company discloses 
the names and remuneration of 
employees who are substantial 
shareholders of the company, or 
are immediate family members of 
a director, the CEO or a substantial 
shareholder of the company, and 

the Company’s purpose in retaining 
and nurturing the Group’s talent  
pool across all key management 
personnel, regardless of their 
relationship with the controlling 
shareholder or director.

Having consulted Carrots as well 
as the Company’s Human Resource 
department, there is assurance from 
the Board and the RC that the level 
and structure of remuneration are 
aligned with the long-term interests 
and risk management policies of the 
Company. The Company is of the  
view that the disclosures herein 
would provide adequate information 
on the remuneration policies and 
practices for Directors and key 
management personnel.

whose remuneration exceeds 
$100,000 during the year, in bands no 
wider than $100,000. The Company 
has disclosed the remuneration of  
Ms Helen Chow in bands of $250,000. 
The Company is of the view that the 
intent of Principle 8 of the Code was 
met, as the remuneration policies, the 
procedure for setting remuneration 
applicable to the key management 
personnel of the Company, and the 
level and mix of remuneration are 
disclosed above. Moreover, Ms Helen 
Chow is in a senior position and 
is considered as key management 
personnel, hence the disclosure  
made in bands of $250,000 would  
be meaningful to investors as to  
the level of remuneration paid to 
these employees as well as serving 
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Accountability and Audit

Principle 9: 

Risk Management and  
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the 
governance of risk and ensures that 
Management maintains a sound 
system of risk management and 
internal controls, to safeguard  
the interests of the company and  
its shareholders.

The Board places great importance in 
having adequate and effective internal 
controls and risk management practices 
within the Company in order to achieve 
good corporate governance. The Board, 
assisted by the ARC, is responsible for 
risk governance, including determining 
the nature and extent of the significant 
risks which the Group is willing to take.  
The Group’s internal controls provide  
reasonable assurance that the Group’s  
assets are safeguarded, proper 
accounting records are well-maintained,  
financial information are reliable and 
applicable laws and regulations are 
properly complied with.

The Board ensures that the Management  
maintains an adequate and effective 
system of internal controls and risk 
management which addresses key 
material risks including those posed in 
financial, operational, compliance and 
information technology domains. The 
ARC has been tasked to fully review and 
report annually on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal controls 
and risk management as well as to 
assist with oversight of key risks of  
the Group.

The Group has in place an enterprise 
risk management (“ERM”) framework 
which enables Board oversight of 
Group-wide risks within the respective 

business units. The ERM framework 
enables the identification, assessment, 
management and monitoring of key 
risks to the Group’s business. It also sets 
out the risk tolerance and describes the 
tolerance for various classes of risk by 
the Board based on the percentage of 
the Company’s net tangible asset (NTA). 
As part of this framework, risk registers 
are set up to document the identified 
key material risks and mitigating 
controls/actions. The policies and 
procedure within the ERM framework 
allow the Group to regularly review 
the significance of its key material 
risks, and to consider the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Group’s system of 
internal controls to limit, mitigate and 
monitor the identified key material  
risks and the implementation of further 
action plans to manage strategic  
business risks, especially financial, 
operational, compliance and 
information technology risks. 

As part of its ongoing efforts to 
improve the risk management policies 
and systems, the Board, with the 
assistance of KPMG, reviews the Group’s 
existing internal controls and the risk 
registers annually. Risk workshops 
are carried out with the risk owners 
to identify, assess and prioritise these 
risks. Mitigating actions in managing 
the key risks, as well as action plans to 
address the gaps, are considered and 
documented. Risk tolerance limits are 
continuously monitored against the 
Group’s risk appetite and are subject 
to annual reviews. Operating within 
risk tolerance limits provides the 
Management with greater assurance 
that the Group operates within its risk 
appetite (Provision 9.1).

The Board has received assurance from 
the MD and the Group CFO that (i) the 
financial records have been properly 
maintained and the financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the Group’s 

operations and finances; and (ii) the 
Group’s framework of risk management 
and internal controls is adequate and 
effective in addressing the key material 
risks relating to financial, operational, 
compliance and information technology 
controls, which the Company may 
face in the day-to-day operation of its 
businesses (Provision 9.2). 
 
Based on the internal controls 
established, the assurance received 
from the MD and the Group CFO 
regarding financial records, risk 
management and internal controls 
established and maintained by the 
Group, the work performed by the 
internal and external auditors and the 
existing management controls in place, 
the Board, with the concurrence of 
the ARC, is of the opinion that there 
are adequate and effective internal 
controls and risk management systems 
in place within the Group addressing 
the key material risks relating to 
financial, operational, compliance  
and information technology controls,  
to meet the needs of the Group in  
its current business environment as  
at 30 June 2024.

The system of risk management and 
internal controls which has been 
established by the Group provides 
reasonable assurance that the Group 
will not be adversely affected by 
events that can be reasonably foreseen 
as it strives to achieve its business 
objectives. The Board, however, notes 
that no system of risk management and 
internal controls can provide absolute 
assurance in this regard or against 
poor judgement in decision-making, 
human error, losses, fraud or other 
irregularities. The Board, together with 
the ARC and the Management, will 
continue to enhance and improve the 
existing risk management and internal 
controls framework to identify and 
mitigate these risks.
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Principle 10: 

Audit & Risk Committee

The Board has an ARC which 
discharges its duties objectively.

The ARC comprises three members, all of 
whom are independent non-executive 
Directors. The ARC members are Mr Eric 
Ang Teik Lim, Lead Independent Director 
– Chairman of the ARC, Mrs Mildred Tan 
and Mr Guy Daniel Harvey-Samuel (who 
succeeded Ms Kwa Kim Li as a member  
of the ARC on 1 January 2024).

The Board considers the members of the 
ARC appropriately qualified to discharge 
the roles and responsibilities of the ARC. 
The Chairman of the ARC has sufficient 
financial management expertise and 
experience (Provision 10.2). The ARC does 
not comprise former partners or directors 
of the Company’s existing auditing firm 
or auditing corporation: (a) within a 
period of two years commencing on the 
date of their ceasing to be a partner 
of the auditing firm or director of the 
auditing corporation; and in any case, 
(b) for as long as they have any financial 
interest in the auditing firm or auditing 
corporation (Provision 10.3). The ARC  
held three meetings in FY2024. The 
ARC met with the internal and external 
auditors separately, without the presence 
of the Management during FY2024 
(Provision 10.5). 

The ARC meets on a periodic basis to 
perform, inter alia, the following:- 

•	 review the significant financial 
reporting issues and judgements so as 
to ensure the integrity of the financial 
statements of the Company and 
any announcements relating to the 
Company’s performance; 

•	 review and report to the Board at 
least annually the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s risk 
management and internal controls, 
including financial, operational, 

compliance and information 
technology controls; 

•	 recommend the appointment,  
re-appointment and removal of  
the external auditors; 

•	 review the scope, results and cost 
effectiveness of the audit exercise; 

•	 evaluate the independence and 
objectivity of the external auditors; 
and 

•	 review the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the internal audit function 
(Provisions 10.1(a)-(e)).

The ARC recommends the appointment, 
re-appointment or removal of the 
external auditors, the audit fee and 
terms of engagement, and recommends 
to the Board on the proposal to 
shareholders for the selection of external 
auditors. Having reviewed the value 
of the non-audit services provided by 
the external auditors to the Group, the 
ARC is satisfied that the nature and 
extent of such services do not prejudice 
the independence and objectivity of 
the external auditors when carrying 
out its audit function of the Company. 
The aggregate amount of fees paid by 
the Company, broken down into audit 
and non-audit services rendered to the 
Company for FY2024 is disclosed on  
page 72 of this Annual Report.

The ARC is guided by its own written 
terms of reference setting out its 
authority and duties. The ARC has explicit 
authority to investigate any matter 
within its terms of reference, full access 
to and co-operation by the Management, 
complete discretion to invite any 
Director or executive officer to attend 
its meetings, and reasonable resources 
to enable it to discharge its functions 
effectively and properly. The ARC 
maintains a high standard of corporate 
governance by reviewing, inter alia, the 
significant financial reporting issues and 
judgements, annual audit plan, internal 
audit processes and the adequacy and 
effectiveness of risk management and 
internal controls, including financial, 

operational, compliance and information 
technology controls within the Company 
as well as any interested person 
transactions which may arise during the 
course of the Company’s businesses. 

In FY2024, the ARC reviewed the  
half-year and full-year financial 
statements of the Group. In addition, 
the ARC has received and reviewed the 
formal assurance from the MD and the 
Group CFO on the financial records and 
financial statements before submitting 
the same to the Board for its approval. 
Any changes to existing accounting 
standards and issues which have a direct 
impact on financial statements are raised 
and discussed at the ARC meetings 
(Provision 10.1). The ARC also reviews 
the procedures for detecting fraud 
and whistle-blowing, and ensures that 
arrangements are in place by which staff 
of the Company and any other persons 
may, in confidence, raise concerns about 
possible improprieties in matters of 
financial reporting, financial control,  
or any other matters.

In presenting the annual financial 
statements and announcement of 
financial results to the shareholders,  
the Board aims to provide shareholders 
with a fair, balanced and complete 
assessment of the Company’s 
performance, financial position and 
prospects on a half-yearly basis, as well  
as other price-sensitive public reports, 
and reports to regulators, where 
required. The Management furnishes  
the Board with the half-year and full-year 
management reports, which present an 
independent and accurate appraisal of 
the Company and its businesses, and all 
other information that will enable the 
Board to make a balanced and well-
informed assessment of the Company’s 
performance, position and prospects,  
as the Board may require from time to 
time. The Board has also put in place 
adequate steps to ensure compliance 
with legislative and regulatory 
requirements. 

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED28.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



In the review of the financial statements for FY2024, the ARC has discussed with the Management and the external auditors on the 
accounting principles that were applied and their judgement of issues that might affect the integrity of the financial statements.  
The following are key audit matters reported by the external auditors for FY2024:- 

Key audit matters How these issues were addressed by the ARC 

Valuation of 
development  
properties

The ARC has considered the approach and methodology applied to the valuation of development 
properties, focusing on development properties with slower-than-expected sales, low or negative 
margins. The ARC was periodically briefed by the Management on the development of key projects,  
the market trends and the strategies to sell the development properties.

The ARC also considered the work performed by the external auditors on their assessment of the 
reasonableness of the assumptions used in the valuation of development properties.

The ARC was satisfied with the valuation process, the methodologies used and the basis of the valuation 
for the development properties as adopted and disclosed in the financial statements.

Valuation of  
investment  
properties

The ARC considered and discussed with the Management on the approach and methodology applied to 
the valuation of investment properties.

The ARC also considered the work performed by the external auditors on their assessment of the 
appropriateness of the valuation techniques, the reasonableness of the critical assumptions made for the 
key inputs by the independent property valuers in determining the valuation of investment properties.

The ARC was satisfied with the valuation process, the methodologies used and the basis of the valuation 
for the investment properties as adopted and disclosed in the financial statements.

The ARC also takes steps to keep  
itself abreast of new developments in 
and changes to accounting standards 
and issues which have a material 
impact on financial statements 
through regular updates provided by 
professionals or external auditors  
and consultants.

The external auditors are a completely 
independent function and they 
have provided confirmation of their 
independence to the ARC. No Director 
or senior manager has an employment 
relationship with the current external 
auditors. The Company has complied 
with Rules 712 and 715 of the SGX-ST  
Listing Manual in relation to the 
appointment of its external auditors.

The ARC also approves the 
appointment, removal, evaluation  
and compensation of the internal 
audit function in the Group.  

The ARC ensures that the internal 
audit function is independent, 
effective, adequately resourced and 
has appropriate standing within 
the Company. The internal audit 
function is outsourced to KPMG, 
which is a reputable accounting 
and auditing firm staffed by 
qualified professionals with relevant 
qualifications and experience. The 
audit methodology is in conformance 
with the International Standards for 
the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing of the Institute of Internal 
Auditors. These standards cover 
attributes as well as performance and 
implementation principles. KPMG 
reports to the Chairman of the ARC 
and has unfettered access to all of 
the Group’s documents, records, 
properties and personnel, including 
unrestricted access to the ARC. On 
an annual basis, the ARC reviews the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the 

internal audit function. For FY2024, 
the ARC concludes that the internal 
audit function is adequate (including 
adequately resourced), effective and 
independent (Provision 10.4 / SGX 

Listing Rule 1207(10C)).

The Company also adopts a set of 
internal controls which sets out 
approval limits for expenditure, 
monetary withdrawals, investments 
and divestments and cheque signatory 
arrangements within the Company. 
KPMG assists the ARC in its functions 
by reporting its audit findings to the 
ARC and the senior management. The 
scope of KPMG’s role is to perform 
detailed work to assist the ARC and the 
Board in their evaluation of internal 
controls and risk management in the 
Company’s day-to-day operations. 
Wherever required, KPMG submits its 
plans and recommendations to the 
ARC for approval.
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Whistle-blowing Policy

The Company has put in place a policy 
on whistle-blowing to facilitate the 
reporting of activities or practices which 
are in violation of the Group’s work ethics 
and rules. Key details are published on 
the Company’s website and anonymous 
reporting is allowed. The Group 
encourages employees or any other 
parties to report unlawful, unethical 
or fraudulent activities or practices in 
strict confidence. All whistle-blowing 
reports are submitted either to the 
internal auditors (“IA”) or the Chairman 

Particulars of IPT for FY2024 as required under Rule 907 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual 
are as follows:- 

Name of interested person

Aggregate value of 
all interested person 

transactions during the 
financial year under 

review (excluding 
transactions less than 

$100,000 and transactions 
conducted under 

shareholders’ mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920 of 

the SGX-ST Listing Manual)
$’000

Aggregate value 
of all interested 

person transactions 
conducted under 
the shareholders’ 

mandate pursuant 
to Rule 920 of the 

SGX-ST Listing 
Manual (excluding 

transactions less  
than $100,000)

$’000

Management and other related fees 

–	� Lanson Place Hospitality 
Management (Singapore)  
Pte Ltd#

736 N.A.

–	� Lanson Place Hospitality 
Management (Malaysia) 
Limited#

292 N.A.

#	 The Group has a 32.97% interest in the company. 

of the ARC so that independent 
investigation and appropriate follow-
up action can be carried out under 
strict confidentiality. The ARC has 
the responsibility of overseeing this 
whistle-blowing policy, which is 
administered with the assistance of 
the IA. The process of raising concerns 
about possible improprieties in matters 
of financial reporting or other matters 
has been properly communicated to 
all employees in the Company and the 
whistle-blowing hotline is disclosed 
to all other persons on the Company’s 
website. The Company assures that 

the whistle-blower’s identity will be 
kept confidential, subject to prevailing 
laws and regulations, and any form 
of retaliation by anyone against the 
whistle-blower will not be tolerated and 
disciplinary action will be taken against 
those who victimise the whistle-blower. 
The Company trusts that this practice 
encourages openness and promotes 
transparency, and provides an effective 
check and balance against the internal 
controls and risk management practices 
of the Group (Provision 10.1(f)). There 
were no whistle-blowing reports 
received by the ARC in FY2024. 

Interested Person 
Transactions

The Company has an established 
internal policy when dealing with 
interested person transactions 
(“IPT”) which sets out clear 
procedures for their review and 
approval. The Company did not 
have to obtain any shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920 of 
the SGX-ST Listing Manual. 

The Company has established clear 
policies that require Directors of the 
Board to refrain from participation 
in Board discussions and decision-
making process on a particular 
agenda when they have conflict 
of interests. The Company also 
takes steps to ensure that IPTs 
are conducted fairly and on arm’s 
length basis.
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Shareholder Rights  
and Engagement	

Principle 11: 

Shareholder Rights and  
Conduct of General Meetings

The company treats all 
shareholders fairly and equitably 
in order to enable them to exercise 
shareholders’ rights and have 
the opportunity to communicate 
their views on matters affecting 
the company. The company gives 
shareholders a balanced and 
understandable assessment of  
its performance, position  
and prospects.

In line with the disclosure obligations 
under the SGX-ST Listing Manual 
and the Companies Act 1967, and to 
facilitate the exercise of ownership 
rights by the shareholders, the 
Company promptly informs its 
shareholders of all developments 
that materially impact the Group. 
Shareholders are updated on the 
businesses and affairs of the Company 
through the release of the Company’s 
results on a half-yearly basis. Material 
and price-sensitive information is 
publicly released by the Company via 
the Singapore Exchange Network 
(“SGXNET”) on an immediate basis 
where required by the SGX-ST. 
The Company does not practise 
selective disclosure of information. 
Timely and detailed disclosure of 
pertinent corporate information is 
communicated via SGXNET and the 
Company’s website. 

Shareholders are given the opportunity 
to raise questions and communicate 
their views to the Company at general 
meetings and minutes of these general 
meetings (including questions raised 
by shareholders and answers thereto) 
are posted on the Company’s website 
(Provision 11.5). Shareholders are also 
given the opportunity, presented 
through the general meeting agenda,  
to approve remuneration (fees, allowances,  
benefit-in-kind and other emoluments) 
or any increase in remuneration for the 
non-executive Directors. 

The Board of Directors are required to 
be present at all general meetings of 
shareholders to address shareholders’ 
queries at these meetings, except in the 
case of exigencies. The external auditors 
of the Company were also present to 
assist the Board in addressing any queries 
posed by the shareholders about the 
conduct of audit and the preparation  
and content of the auditors’ report 
(Provision 11.3).

The Company passes separate resolutions 
at general meetings on each distinct  
issue placed before it (Provision 11.2).  
A shareholder can vote in person or  
by way of proxy at general meetings.  
All resolutions at the general meetings 
are put to the vote by way of poll and  
the detailed results of the voting for  
each of the resolutions are announced  
on SGXNET and the Company’s website.  
The Company’s Constitution provides 
that a registered shareholder who is not 
a relevant intermediary (as defined in the 
Companies Act 1967) and who is unable 
to attend may choose to appoint up to 
two proxies to attend and vote on his/her 

behalf, while relevant intermediaries may 
appoint more than two proxies to attend 
and participate in general meetings. 
Voting in absentia by mail, facsimile or 
email is currently not permitted so as 
to ensure proper authentication of the 
identity of shareholders and their voting 
intent (Provision 11.4). Voting and vote 
tabulation procedures used are disclosed 
before the general meetings proceed 
with appointed independent scrutineer 
to validate the voting process and 
procedures (Provision 11.1). 

For the 2023 AGM which was held 
physically, the Chairman, Board of 
Directors and external auditors of 
the Company were in attendance and 
shareholders were given opportunities  
to raise and have their questions 
answered before each resolution is put 
to the vote by way of poll. Questions 
raised, together with their answers, were 
recorded in the minutes of the 2023 AGM 
and posted on the Company’s website. 
The forthcoming 2024 AGM will similarly 
be held physically. Shareholders are 
reminded to refer to the Notice of 2024 
AGM (which is also advertised in the 
press) for further details. 

The Company has a dividend policy 
of around 30% payout ratio based 
on underlying net profits, taking into 
consideration the Company’s financial 
position, capital needs, plans for 
expansion and other factors as the 
Board may deem appropriate. Currently, 
the Company pays dividend(s) to all its 
shareholders within 30 days after the 
shareholders’ approval of the dividend(s) 
at the shareholders general meetings 
(Provision 11.6). 
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Principle 12: 

Engagement with Shareholders

The company communicates 
regularly with its shareholders 
and facilitates the participation 
of shareholders during general 
meetings and other dialogues to 
allow shareholders to communicate 
their views on various matters 
affecting the company. 

In line with the Company’s sustainability 
practices and efforts, the Company 
has discontinued the general mailing 
of annual reports and circulars to 
shareholders. Shareholders are 
encouraged to access the annual reports 
and circulars of the Company from the 
Company’s website. The notices of the 
Company’s AGMs and the Company’s 
results are published via SGXNET and  
on the Company’s website. 

To facilitate the participation of 
shareholders at the AGMs, the notices of 
the Company’s AGMs contain details and, 
where necessary, explanatory notes, of 
each agenda item for the AGM. In order 
to address shareholders’ concerns, the 
Company shares on SGXNET as well as the 
Company’s website, a set of corporate 
presentation slides on its full-year results 
and updates on the Group’s businesses. 

A Corporate Finance team carries out 
established investor relations policies 
in order to ensure regular and effective 
conveyance of pertinent information  
to shareholders. The Company makes 
timely disclosure of material and  
price-sensitive information to help 
investors make informed decisions. 

Shareholders, investors and analysts are 
kept informed with updated information, 
including financial statements and 
presentation slides via announcements, 
press releases, annual general meetings 
and briefing sessions, where appropriate  
(Provision 12.2).

If shareholders have any feedback or 
query, they may submit feedback and 
raise questions through the Company’s 
website at www.wingtaiasia.com 
(Provision 12.3).

Principle 13: 

Engagement with Stakeholders

The Board adopts an inclusive 
approach by considering and 
balancing the needs and interests of 
material stakeholders, as part of its 
overall responsibility to ensure that 
the best interests of the company  
are served.

The Company’s engagement with all 
stakeholders will be set out in detail in 
the Sustainability Report to be published 
annually via SGXNET and on the 
Company’s website.

The Company takes its corporate  
social responsibility seriously and  
it is not involved in nor does it  
have any legal violation pertaining 
to labour, employment, consumer, 
insolvency, commercial, competition  
or environmental issues.

The Company’s latest financial results, 
annual reports and Code of Conduct are 
available on the Company’s website at 
www.wingtaiasia.com (Provision 13.3). 

Dealings in Securities

The Company has adopted and 
implemented an internal guideline 
on share dealings in the Company’s 
securities in compliance with Rule 
1207(19)(c) of the SGX-ST Listing 
Manual. All officers of the Company 
are prohibited from dealing in 
securities of the Company whilst 
in possession of price-sensitive 
information. They are also precluded 
from dealing in securities of the 
Company during the closed period, 
which is one month before the date  
of announcement of the half-year  
and full-year financial results. In 
addition, officers of the Company  
are also strongly discouraged from 
dealing in the Company’s securities  
on short-term considerations.

Professional Conduct  
and Discipline

The Company has established various 
policies on employees’ conduct, 
confidentiality, conflict of interests, 
intellectual property, personal data 
protection, privacy, cyber-security, 
software use, and internet usage. 
The Company continues to remind 
all employees that they are required 
to conduct and carry themselves in a 
professional manner while at work,  
and undertake to observe and adhere  
to all prevailing policies. 
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Name of Director Cheng Wai Keung Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang Tan Hwee Bin

Job Title Chairman and  
Managing Director

Member of the  
Nominating Committee

Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Executive Director

Date of  
Appointment

17 April 1973 2 January 2018 5 December 2008

Date of last  
re-appointment  
(if applicable)

26 October 2021 26 October 2022 26 October 2021

Age 74 74 61

Country of  
principal residence

Singapore Malaysia Singapore

The Board’s 
comments on 
this appointment 
(including rationale, 
selection criteria, 
board diversity 
considerations, 
and the search and 
nomination process)

The Board of Directors 
has considered the 
recommendation of the 
NC and is of the view that 
Mr Cheng has the requisite 
qualifications, capabilities 
and experience to assume 
the role of Chairman and 
Managing Director of WTH.

The Board of Directors 
has considered the 
recommendation of the  
NC and is of the view that  
Tan Sri Zulkurnain has the 
requisite qualifications, 
capabilities and experience 
to assume the role of 
Independent Non-Executive 
Director of WTH.

The Board of Directors 
has considered the 
recommendation of the 
NC and is of the view that 
Ms Tan has the requisite 
qualifications, capabilities 
and experience to assume 
the role of Executive 
Director of WTH.

Pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the additional information relating to Mr Cheng Wai Keung, Tan Sri Zulkurnain 
Bin Awang and Ms Tan Hwee Bin is set out below:

Additional Information on 
Directors Seeking Re-election
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Name of Director Cheng Wai Keung Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang Tan Hwee Bin

Whether 
appointment is 
executive, and 
if so, the area of 
responsibility

Executive

Mr Cheng is responsible  
for the overall management  
and operations of the  
Wing Tai Group.

Non-Executive Executive

Ms Tan is responsible for 
developing and implementing 
the overall business strategy  
for the operations of the  
Wing Tai Group. 

Professional 
qualifications

•	 Bachelor of Science, Indiana 
University, USA

•	 Master of Business 
Administration, University of 
Chicago, USA

•	 Bachelor of Economics 
(Honours), University of 
Malaya, Malaysia

•	 Master of Arts in 
International Affairs 
Management, Ohio 
University, USA

•	 Master of Arts in Political 
Science, Ohio University, USA

•	 Certificate in Public 
Administration, Ohio 
University, USA

•	 PhD, University of Leeds, 
England

•	 Harvard Advanced 
Management Program, 
Harvard Business School, 
Boston, USA

•	 Bachelor of Accountancy, 
National University of 
Singapore

•	 Chartered Accountant of 
Singapore

•	 Harvard Advanced 
Management Program, 
Harvard Business School, 
Boston, USA

Working experience 
and occupation(s) 
during the past  
10 years

•	 Chairman of WTH since 1994

•	 Managing Director of WTH 
since 1985

•	 Deputy Chairman of Temasek 
Holdings (Private) Limited 
since 2013

•	 Managing Director of Wing 
Tai Malaysia Berhad until it 
was delisted from the Official 
List of the Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad on 30 
August 2017

•	 Independent Non-Executive 
Director of Wing Tai Malaysia 
Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as  
Wing Tai Malaysia Berhad) 
until 29 November 2017

•	 Executive Director of WTH 
since 2008

Shareholding interest 
in the listed issuer 
and its subsidiaries

214,400 WTH shares  
(direct interest)

468,153,459 WTH shares 
(deemed interest) 

No 2,946,635 WTH shares  
(direct interest)
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Name of Director Cheng Wai Keung Tan Sri Zulkurnain Bin Awang Tan Hwee Bin

Any relationship 
(including immediate 
family relationships) 
with any existing 
director, existing 
executive officer, 
the issuer and/
or substantial 
shareholder of the 
listed issuer or of 
any of its principal 
subsidiaries

Mr Cheng is the brother  
of Mr Edmund Cheng  
(Deputy Chairman and Deputy 
Managing Director of WTH) 
and Mr Cheng Man Tak  
(Non-Executive Director  
of WTH).

No No

Conflict of interest 
(including any 
competing business)

No No No

Undertaking  
(in the format set 
out in Appendix 7.7) 
under Rule 720(1) has 
been submitted to 
the listed issuer

Yes Yes Yes

Other Principal Commitments including Directorships

Past  
(for the last  
5 years)

•	 Advisor, Sumitomo Mitsui 
Banking Corporation 
Singapore

•	 Chairman, Asia Metropolitan 
University Sdn Bhd

•	 Chairman, Asiamet (M)  
Sdn Bhd.

•	 Chairman, NTUC Health  
Co-operative Limited

Present •	 Deputy Chairman, Temasek 
Holdings (Private) Limited

•	 Chairman, Singapore Health 
Services Pte Ltd

•	 Vice Chairman,  
Singapore-Suzhou  
Township Development  
Pte Ltd

•	 Director, MOH Holdings  
Pte Ltd

•	 Director, Kidney Dialysis 
Foundation Limited

•	 Chairman, Wing Tai Malaysia 
Sdn. Bhd.

•	 Director, Singapore Labour 
Foundation

•	 Director, NTUC Enterprise  
Co-operative Limited

•	 Director, NTUC FairPrice  
Co-operative Limited

•	 Vice President,  
Singapore National 
Employers Federation 
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Name of Director Cheng Wai Keung
Tan Sri Zulkurnain  

Bin Awang
Tan Hwee Bin

(a)	� Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an application or a petition 
under any bankruptcy law of any jurisdiction was filed against him or against a 
partnership of which he was a partner at the time when he was a partner or at 
any time within 2 years from the date he ceased to be a partner?

No No No

(b)	� Whether at any time during the last 10 years, an application or a petition 
under any law of any jurisdiction was filed against an entity (not being a 
partnership) of which he was a director or an equivalent person or a key 
executive, at the time when he was a director or an equivalent person or a key 
executive of that entity or at any time within 2 years from the date he ceased 
to be a director or an equivalent person or a key executive of that entity, for 
the winding up or dissolution of that entity or, where that entity is the trustee 
of a business trust, that business trust, on the ground of insolvency?

No No No

(c)	� Whether there is any unsatisfied judgment against him? No No No

(d)	� Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in Singapore or 
elsewhere, involving fraud or dishonesty which is punishable with 
imprisonment, or has been the subject of any criminal proceedings (including 
any pending criminal proceedings of which he is aware) for such purpose?

No No No

(e)	� Whether he has ever been convicted of any offence, in Singapore or 
elsewhere, involving a breach of any law or regulatory requirement that 
relates to the securities or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or has 
been the subject of any criminal proceedings (including any pending criminal 
proceedings of which he is aware) for such breach?

No No No

(f)	� Whether at any time during the last 10 years, judgment has been entered 
against him in any civil proceedings in Singapore or elsewhere involving a 
breach of any law or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities 
or futures industry in Singapore or elsewhere, or a finding of fraud, 
misrepresentation or dishonesty on his part, or he has been the subject of any 
civil proceedings (including any pending civil proceedings of which he is aware) 
involving an allegation of fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty on his part?

No No No

(g)	� Whether he has ever been convicted in Singapore or elsewhere of any  
offence in connection with the formation or management of any entity or 
business trust?

No No No

(h)	� Whether he has ever been disqualified from acting as a director or an 
equivalent person of any entity (including the trustee of a business trust), or 
from taking part directly or indirectly in the management of any entity or 
business trust?

No No No

(i)	� Whether he has ever been the subject of any order, judgment or ruling of any 
court, tribunal or governmental body, permanently or temporarily enjoining 
him from engaging in any type of business practice or activity?

No No No

(j)	� Whether he has ever, to his knowledge, been concerned with the 
management or conduct, in Singapore or elsewhere, of the affairs of:-

	 (i)	� any corporation which has been investigated for a breach of any law or 
regulatory requirement governing corporations in Singapore or elsewhere; or

No No No

	 (ii)	� any entity (not being a corporation) which has been investigated for a 
breach of any law or regulatory requirement governing such entities in 
Singapore or elsewhere; or

No No No

	 (iii)	�any business trust which has been investigated for a breach of any law  
or regulatory requirement governing business trusts in Singapore or 
elsewhere; or

No No No

	 (iv)	�any entity or business trust which has been investigated for a breach of 
any law or regulatory requirement that relates to the securities or futures 
industry in Singapore or elsewhere,

	� in connection with any matter occurring or arising during that period when he 
was so concerned with the entity or business trust?

No No No

(k)	� Whether he has been the subject of any current or past investigation or 
disciplinary proceedings, or has been reprimanded or issued any warning, by the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore or any other regulatory authority, exchange, 
professional body or government agency, whether in Singapore or elsewhere?

No No No
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Directors’ Statement

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES 

 
Company and related corporations according to the register of the directors’ shareholdings were as follows:

mentioned directors’ interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21 July 202

Directors’ Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024
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Directors’ Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Directors’ Statement

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES 

(“Wing Tai PSP”) and the Wing Tai Restricted Share Plan (“Wing Tai RSP”)
(collectively referred to as the “Wing Tai Share Plans ”) were adopted by the members of the Com

“Committee”) comprising two directors, namely Cheng Wai Keung and Tan Hwee Bin

 
One of the primary objectives of the Wing Tai PSP is to increase the Company’s flexibility and effectiveness in its 
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Directors’ Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Directors’ Statement

 

–
–

Committee reviewed the Group’s accounting 

 the audit plans of the Company’s 

 

 ’

 
uditor’s 

The Audit & Risk Committee also assists the Board of Directors with risk governance and overseeing the Company’s risk 
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Directors’ Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Directors’ Statement
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Wing Tai Holdings Limited

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Wing Tai Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its 
(“the Group”) and the statement of financial position of the Company are properly drawn up in 

(“the Act”) and 
(“ s”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Wing Tai Holdings Limited

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

of the Group’s development properties 

the Group’s total assets. The disclosures 

properties held by the Group’s 

Properties Limited (“WTP”) 
carrying value of the Group’s investment

dependent on the Group’s estimated 

Our audit procedures to assess the adequacy of management’s estimated 

• 

• 

• 

against the Group’s past projects; and
• 

We also evaluated management’s key assumptions relating to estimated 

For the Group’s interest in 

management’s estimates and assumption
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of Wing Tai Holdings Limited

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

of the Group’s investment 

Group’s total assets. The Group 

properties held by the Group’s 

Tai Properties Limited (“WTP”) affects 
the carrying value of the Group’s 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

For the Group’s interest in WTP, accounted for under the equity method of 
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To the Members of Wing Tai Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

• 

• 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s 

• 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

doubt on the Group’s abi
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 

• 

• 

matters in our auditor’s r

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is 
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 

$’000 $’000

–

–
–

–
–
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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$’000 $’000
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Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2024

⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED50.

FINANCIALS AND OTHER INFORMATION



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

An analysis of the movement in each category within “ erves” is presented in Note 2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024
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$’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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“the Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and is listed on Singapore 

(International) (“SFRS(I)s”), under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies 

judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical 
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of 

The Group adopted the following new or amended SFRS(I)s and Interpretations of SFRS(I)s (“INT SFRS(I)s”), that 

• 

• 
• 

Changes to the Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional 

in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is presented, net of goods 
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–

ed on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance 

asset is recognised as “ nbilled revenue” under other assets when the Group has performed under the contract 
but has not yet billed the customer. Conversely, a contract liability is recognised as “
development properties” under other liabilities when the Group has not
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The Group operates a customer loyalty programme called “wt+” that provides purchase credits in the form of 
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comprise the portion of a subsidiary company’s net results of operations and its 

 

controlling interest’s proportionate share of the 
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 

 
Group’s
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Group’s

 

over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net

 

Group’s share of its associated joint venture companies’ post

When the Group’s share of 
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Group’s 

losses in the Company’s statement of financial position. On disposal of 

 

 

 

–

–
–
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profit or loss within “ – net”

not contracted for, management’s estimates of the amounts to be incurred taking into consideration historical 
trends of the amounts incurred. The allowance for foreseeable losses is included in “ – net”. 
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For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash 
“ ”

recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of the CGU’s fair value less 

 

• 
• Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or
• Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).
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The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets as well as 

 

There are three subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Group’s business model for 

• 

in “ nterest income”

• 

assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are classified as FVOCI. 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented in “ – net”. Interest income from 
these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method and presented in “
income”.

• 

“ – net”.
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the changes arise and presented in “ – net”, except for equity investments which are not 

FVOCI are presented as “ air value gains/(losses)” in 
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss as “ ividend income”.

 

 
–

are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs in the Company’s 
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cash flow hedge for the Group’s exposure to 
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currency forwards that qualify as net investment hedges for the Group’s exposure to 

 

presented within “ roperty, plant and equipment”.

“ nvestment properties” and accounted for in accordance with Note 2.

 

• 
• 

• 
• 
•
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• 
• change in the Group’s assessment of whether it will exercise 

• 
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environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial statements 

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the 
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Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

When the Company purchases its own ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), the

attributable to the Company’s equity holders, until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.
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Company’s 

$’000 $’000

–
–

–

–

–
–

 

$’000 $’000 $’000

Unbilled revenue relates to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not yet billed at the end 
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$’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000 $’000
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–

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000

Auditors’ remuneration paid/payable to:
–
–

–
–
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$’000 $’000

(including directors’ remuneration)
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans including Central Provident Fund

Please refer to Note 34(b) for directors’ remuneration.

$’000 $’000

–
–

 

$’000 $’000

–
–

–

–
–
–
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the Group’s 

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
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($’000)
($’000)

($’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (‘000)

 

($’000)

in issue (’000)
Add: Adjustment for share plans (’000)

per share (’000)

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED76.

FINANCIALS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024



⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
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(“SORA”).

arising from the Group’s 

edging instruments used in the Group’s and the Company’s

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–

–

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
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–

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–

–

 

 

$’000 $’000

cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “ ost of sales” amounted to $2

$’000 $’000

–
–
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Group’s 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Included in the Group’s prepayments is the amount of $28.0 million comprising tender fee for the purchase of the 

 

$’000 $’000
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82 
 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024 
 
15.  OTHER ASSETS (continued) 
 

(b) Financial assets at FVPL 
 
    Group Company 
   2024 2023 2024 2023 
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

 Beginning of financial year  16,264 17,265 16,264 17,265 
 Fair value losses recognised in income statement  (3,290) (1,001) (3,290) (1,001) 

 End of financial year  12,974 16,264 12,974 16,264 

 
Represented by: 

 Unquoted equity securities in Singapore  12,974 16,264 12,974 16,264 
 
16. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 
   Group 
  2024 2023 
  $’000 $’000 

 Beginning of financial year 964 1,197 
 Disposals (957) (2,116) 
 Transfer from investment properties (Note 20) 1,356 1,974 
 Currency translation differences (2) (91) 

 End of financial year 1,361 964 
 
(a) On 30 April and 21 May 2024, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary company, Wing Mei (M) Sdn. Bhd., 

entered into sale and purchase agreements to sell two shop offices situated at Taman Bukit Minyak Utama, 
Bukit Mertajam, Pulau Pinang. The sales were completed on 29 July and 19 August 2024, respectively. 
 

(b) On 30 June 2024, Wing Mei (M) Sdn. Bhd. entered into a sale and purchase agreement to sell a shop office 
situated at Sering Ukay, Ampang, Selangor. The sale was completed on 18 September 2024. 
 

17.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES – NON-CURRENT 
 
    Group Company 
   2024 2023 2024 2023 
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

 Loans to subsidiary companies (Note 17(a))  - - 788,840 1,075,112 
 Less: Credit loss allowance  - - (9,783) (9,726) 

   - - 779,057 1,065,386 

 Loan to non-controlling interest (Note 17(b))  6,324 11,413 - - 

   6,324 11,413 779,057 1,065,386 
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–

Company’s net investment in 

 

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–

 

$’000 $’000

–
–
–

–
–
–
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–

–
–

–
–
–

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group’s share of (at 
–
–

Group’s share of (at gross shareholding):
–
–
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$’000 $’000

Share of a joint venture company’s capital commitments 
Share of an associated company’s contingent liabilities in respect of financial 

Wing Tai Properties Limited (“WTP”)

‘s 

the Group’s financial statements. 

The Group’s share of results of associated company includes the Group’s

Details of the Group’s 

$’000 $’000

Details of the Group’s subsidiary companies are listed in Note 
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$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000

Group’s

Group’s 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

derlying assets. The Group’s additions to right

Group’s
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 Nature of the Group’s leasing activities –

 

$’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000

–

 

 

incurred and included in “ ental expense” amounted to $1.1 million (2023: $1.5 million).
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 Nature of the Group’s leasing activities –

 

e assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of the extension options are exercisable by the 

 Nature of the Group’s leasing activities –

er’s

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 
The Group’s secured borrowings are generally secured by mortgages on a 

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

’000 $’000 ’000 $’000

(“Wing Tai PSP”) and the Wing Tai Restricted Share Plan (“Wing Tai 
RSP”) (collectively referred to as the “Wing Tai Share Plans ”) were adopted by the members of the Company at 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

the subsidiary company’s registered share capital. The reserve is to be used in accordance with the conditions 

 

$’000 $’000
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maturity and are redeemable in whole, but not in part, at the Company’s option on or after 24

$’000 $’000

shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 30 June 2

$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000
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The Group’s activities expose it to market risk 
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management strategy seeks to minimise any adverse effects from the 
unpredictability of financial markets on the Group’s financial perform

 

The Group’s and the Company’s 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

respective entities’ 

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED98.

FINANCIALS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024



⚫⚫ FINANCIAL REPORT

 

 

 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

respective entities’ 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

in the Company’s functional 

the Company’s functional 

The HKD and AUD currency forwards were entered into as net investment hedges for the Group’s 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

 

 

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises mainly from floating rate 
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The Group’s borrowings at floating rates on which effective hedges have not 

The Company’s floating rate borrowings are denominated in SGD and 

$’000 $’000

retain a portion of the purchaser’s deposit from payments made to date, and resell the property. Unless the 
selling price falls by more than the portion of the purchaser’s deposit retained, which is remote, the Group 
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For trade receivables from investment properties, the Group typically collects deposits or banker’s 

evaluation. The counterparty’s payment pattern and credit 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 

looking information), the Group’s historical loss pattern, its ability to 

banker’s guar
transactions and the manner in which these are settled i.e. by cash and credit card for the Group’s 
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The following table analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–

–
–

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–

• 
• 

• 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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qualified valuers to determine the fair values of the Group’s 
investment properties based on the properties’ highest and best use using the direct comparison, income 

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
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$’000 $’000

$’000 $’000

(“EBIT”) for continuing operations. 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–
–
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

–
–
–

The Group’s main business segments operate in six main geographical areas 
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$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

       
       

      - 
       

 

 

 

(“BVI”)/Hong Kong
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published and are relevant for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1 July 2024 and which the Group 
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• the carrying amount of the liability;
• information about the covenants; and
• facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have 

“ ”

entity’s own equity instrument can only be ignored for the purpose of classifying the liability as current or 

The amendments clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements (“SFA”) and introduce new

s to assess the effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash

lessee determines “lease payments” and “revised lease payments” in a way that does not result in the

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED116.

FINANCIALS AND OTHER INFORMATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024



Shareholding Statistics
As at 3 September 2024

117.ANNUAL REPORT 2024     PROGRESSING WITH CONVICTION



Shareholding Statistics
As at 3 September 2024

WING TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED118.

FINANCIALS AND OTHER INFORMATION



This page has been intentionally left blank



This page has been intentionally left blank



Printed on environmentally friendly paper






